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Letter of Transmittal 
 
The Honourable John Nilson 
Minister of Health 
Room 361, Legislative Building 
Regina, Saskatchewan 
S4S 0B3 
 
Dear Mr. Nilson: 
 
We are pleased to submit the annual report for the Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region. This 

report for the 2004-2005 fiscal year is submitted in accordance with the requirements of The 

Regional Health Services Act and The Tabling of Documents Act.  
 

 
 
K. Murray Knuttila      

hairperson       
egina Qu’Appelle Regional Health Authority  
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Strategic Framework 
 

Every successful organization has a strategic framework within which it operates. The Regina 

Qu’Appelle Health Region’s framework starts with our Vision, Mission and Values. Using our 

Values as direction, the Regional Operating Plan with seven Strategic Themes and 28 objectives 

will lead us to our preferred future as a health care organization. 

Vision 
 
Healthy people, families and communities. 

Mission 
 
We are a provincial and community provider of a full range of quality health services, education 

and research that inspires public confidence. We achieve success in meeting the diverse health 

needs of our communities through the strength of our people, partnerships and personal 

responsibility for health.  

Values 
 
Together we succeed through... 
Compassion - Our caring approach to people, families and communities. 
 
Respect - Honesty, trust and valuing diversity as well as similarity will guide all relationships, 
decisions and actions. 
 
Collaboration - Relationships built upon a shared vision, trust, open communication, 
involvement and genuine recognition for people’s and partners’ contributions. 
 
Knowledge - Continuous improvement and effective decision-making based on the pursuit of 
knowledge, evidence, standards of practice and sound ethics.  
 
Stewardship - Accountability for the people and resources entrusted to us, and the courage to do 
what is right. 
 
People Philosophy 
 
People are our passion. By putting people first we are able to achieve our Mission and fulfill our 

Vision through a service environment built on mutual respect, collaboration and teamwork. The 

Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region is working towards practicing our people philosophy 

consistently and striving to live our values in our everyday worklife. 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 
 
Role and Responsibilities 
 
The mandate of the Regina Qu’Appelle Regional Health Authority, on behalf of the citizens of 

the region and southern Saskatchewan, is to assure quality health services and to avoid 

unacceptable activities and conditions.  

The Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region is charged with two main areas of responsibility. The first 

is to assess the health care needs of the people it serves, prepare annual budget plans, deliver 

quality services and evaluate the services it provides. The second is to provide specialized health 

care for 465,000 residents in southern Saskatchewan through the two designated provincial 

hospitals in Regina. 

The Regina Qu’Appelle Regional Health Authority is ultimately accountable for the overall 

management and control of the health region. Pursuant to the Regional Health Services Act, the 

Authority is ultimately accountable to the Minister of Health to achieve the provincial and 

regional goals and objectives for health services. 

Within this mandate, the Authority has set the overall direction for the organization and defined a 

strategic framework, which specifies the Vision, Mission and Values of the organization (see 

page 2 for the Vision, Mission and Values). 

The Authority assumes its role and responsibilities within the context of a governance policy 

framework of decision-making and accountability and the powers of authority prescribed to it in 

the Regional Health Services Act.  

The governance framework is driven by five fundamental components that facilitate board 

performance effectiveness. They include leadership, strategic direction, roles, processes and 

policies, and Authority relationships and development.  

To support the Authority in fulfilling its responsibilities, it has established three committees:  

Executive Committee; Services and Partnerships Committee; Resource Accountability 

Committee. In addition, the Authority has established four Community Advisory Networks to 

ensure that the Authority receives input and advice from local citizens.  
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

 

All Regina Qu’Appelle Regional Health Authority members are appointed to serve on one or two 

of the Authority’s committees and certain members have been designated to liaise with the 

Community Advisory Networks. Each committee and network operate independently of the 

others.  Authority members must travel extensively to attend meetings that are held throughout 

the Region. 

Annual Report 2004-2005 4 



Management Discussion and Analysis 

Regina Qu’Appelle Regional Health Authority 
 Committee Membership and Meeting Attendance 
 
Members                                                                                                                                                     Attendance   

Bergman, Anita                                                                                                                                                      82.4% 

Boutilier, Lloyd                                                                                                                                                       94.1% 

Connolley, Pat                                                                                                                                                        94.1% 

Elford, Loretta                                                                                                                                                        88.2% 

Everett, Marie                                                                                                                                                         100% 

Fisher, Tyronne                                                                                                                                                      94.1% 

Knuttila, Murray                                                                                                                                                     70.6% 

Leier, Bryan                                                                                                                                                            82.4% 

Poitras, Bev                                                                                                                                                            88.2% 

Semenchuck, Gary                                                                                                                                                64.7% 

Taylor, Alex                                                                                                                                                            76.5% 

Ward, Chuck                                                                                                                                                          82.4% 

 
 
Resource 
Accountability 
Committee 

Executive 
Committee 

Services & Partnerships 
Committee 

Community Advisory 
Networks Ad Hoc 
Committee 

• Finance 
• Audit 
• Accreditation 
• Capital & Facilities 
• Human Resources 

• Meetings & Agendas 
• CEO Liaison & 

Evaluation 
• Board/Development 

Education 
• Board Policy 

Development/Review 
• Strategic 

Accountability 
 

• Quality Care/Patient 
Safety 

• Medical Affairs 
• Community Advisory 

Councils 
• Public Relation
• Partnerships 

s 

• Community advice 
and input 

• Linkages to various 
community 
stakeholders 

 
Members       Attendance Members       Attendance Members       Attendance Members       Attendance 
Bergman, Anita        100% Bergman, Anita        100% Bergman, Anita        100% Bergman, Anita        100% 
Boutilier, Lloyd          100% Boutilier, Lloyd          100% Connolley, Pat          100% Connolley, Pat          100% 
Elford, Loretta          100% Elford, Loretta          85.7% Elford, Loretta          100% Everett, Marie           100% 
Leier, Bryan              100% Knuttila, Murray        100% Everett, Marie           100% Knuttila, Murray         80% 
Poitras, Bev             71.4% Leier, Bryan              100% Fisher, Tyronne        100% Ward, Chuck            100% 
Semenchuck, Gary  71.4%  Knuttila, Murray        100%  
Taylor, Alex              100%  Ward, Chuck              90%  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annual Report 2004-2005 5 



Management Discussion and Analysis 

Public Transparency 
 
The Regina Qu’Appelle Regional Health Authority believes that an integral part of its 

accountability to the public involves being transparent and trustworthy. The Authority has taken 

several steps in this regard; for example: 

• Authority business meetings are held in public, and are convened both in Regina and 
in rural areas of the Region. 

• The Region’s Web site includes notices of meetings, agendas and minutes, as well as 
addresses and phone numbers of all Authority members. 

• Authority meetings are advertised in the Leader Post and community newspapers. 
Media advisories are sent to all regional media informing them of Authority meetings. 

• Information regarding activities of the Authority is regularly distributed through the 
Region’s internal and external newsletters. 

• An interface with communities and the public has been established through four 
Community Advisory Networks that provide advice and input directly to the 
Authority. 

 
The payee lists will once again be made public. The two lists show total payments made to 

employees through the payroll system and the total amounts paid to vendors through the 

accounts payable system. The lists will be available for viewing, upon request, during regular 

business hours at any of the Region’s Health Sciences Libraries, located at the Regina General 

and Pasqua hospitals and the Wascana Rehabilitation Centre. The lists will also be posted on our 

Web site, rqhealth.ca, with this annual report.  

Information about the Region is available on the Region’s Web site at rqhealth.ca and in our 

quarterly publication, HealthNews. The Web site contains information on our programs and 

services, news items, and general health information. HealthNews, which is delivered to each 

household in the Region, contains the Chairperson’s message and advice about healthy living, as 

well as information on programs and services offered by the Region. 

The public also gets news on health care from local news organizations. The Region is in almost 

daily contact with reporters and makes every effort to maintain a positive and respectful 

relationship with the news media. Although we have a shared responsibility with the news media 

to inform the public, we take care to ensure that the privacy rights of our patients, clients, 

residents and visitors are preserved. 

The Region also has a responsibility to communicate with our close to 7,500 employees. We also 

need to inform the over 500 physicians who work within the Region but are not all employees. 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

To ensure timely communication, we produce a weekly electronic newsletter for our staff and a 

monthly publication for physicians. 

 
Community Advisory Network Activities  
 
In 2001, the Government of Saskatchewan’s Action Plan for Saskatchewan Health Care called 

for the formation of Community Advisory Networks (CANs) in regional health authorities 

throughout the province. In 2002, the passing of the Regional Health Services Act brought 12 

health regions into existence and mandated them to establish Community Advisory Networks 

(CANs).  

The objective was for health authorities to benefit from advice and input of local citizens when 

setting priorities and direction for health services. The importance of maintaining effective links 

with community leaders, consumer groups, education and social agencies was a priority for 

CANs.  

In response to this mandate, the Regina Qu’Appelle Regional Health Authority (RQHRA) 

appointed four geographically based CANs: Central Community Advisory Network; East 

Community Advisory Network; Regina Community Advisory Network; North Community 

Advisory Network. 

All four Community Advisory Networks were active throughout the 2004-2005 fiscal year. 

Having met both in the spring and fall of 2004, CAN members participated in several 

educational sessions designed to raise their levels of understanding of the Region’s service 

delivery model and health care in general. As part of their mandate, the CANs also met to 

consult on a series of questions asked of them by the Authority. The advice and perspectives 

offered through these discussions added value to the Authority’s own deliberations on these 

health related issues. All four CANs also toured the provincial HealthLine Call Centre facility in 

Regina that is owned and managed by the RQHR.  

During the fall of 2004 and winter of 2005, the Regina Qu’Appelle Regional Health Authority 

(RQRHA) held nine community consultation meetings – five in rural centres and four in Regina. 

The locations of the rural consultations were Indian Head, Cupar, Whitewood, Lumsden and 

Dilke. All four CANs were instrumental in leading the planning and logistics for the nine 

meetings. Members of the public and civic leaders were invited by the Authority to offer, and 

Annual Report 2004-2005 7 



Management Discussion and Analysis 

consult on, their views of the status of health services in the RQHR, as well as identify issues and 

obstacles that posed challenges to accessing high quality health services. A rich diversity of 

viewpoints was expressed, and common themes were identified as major obstacles for health 

service delivery. Clearly, the information gathered by the CANs and the Authority from these 

community consultations added value and enriched the RQRHA’s own viewpoint and 

discussions on some of the major challenges facing health care delivery. 

After the rural meetings, the RQRHA summarized the major themes expressed during these 

consultations in a briefing document that it forwarded to the Minister of Health for further 

discussion. The broad themes identified by the briefing document were: public awareness of 

HealthLine, health care for the elderly, transportation, Primary Health Care, First Responders 

and Emergency Medical Services, and the development of an electronic health card. The 

RQRHA is drafting a similar briefing document based on the discussions of the Regina 

community consultations. 

The marked development of the CANs and their integral involvement in community 

consultations throughout 2004-2005 has set a high standard for activity. The Authority expects to 

rely on the Networks further in 2005-2006 for advice and initiative. 

The Chairpersons of the four Community Advisory Networks are: 

• David Mayer, Central Community Advisory Network;  
• Garry Beckett, East Community Advisory Network;  
• Elizabeth Domm, Regina Community Advisory Network; and  
• Eunice Cameron, North Community Advisory Network. 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

Regina Qu'Appelle
Regional Health
Authority
K. Murray Knuttila
(Chairperson)

PRESIDENT & CEO
Dwight Nelson

Medical Advisory
Committee
Dr. J. McHattie
(Chair)

Vice President
Human Resources
Jane Lindstrom

Vice President
Operations Support
Donna Evans

Vice President
Corporate Services
Carol Klassen

Medical Staff
Association
Dr. C. Ekong
(President)

Learning & Development
Employee Health & Safety Services
Employee Relations & Employment
Services

Clinical Engineering
Facilities Management
Materials Management
Nutrition & Food Services

Finance
Health Records
Information Technology
Research & Performance Support
Risk Management & Legal
Services

Hospitals of Regina
Foundation
P. Youzwa
(Board Chair)

Community
Advisory
Networks

SWADD, Native Counselling,
Spiritual Care & Volunteers
Professional Practice
Quality Improvement
Aboriginal Health Initiatives

Senior Vice President
Medical Services
Dr. B. Laursen

Senior Vice President
Health Services
Patrick Dumelie

Vice President
Medical Services
Dr. D. Ahmed

Medical Administration

Emergency, Emergency Medical Services  &
Ambulatory Care
Family Medicine, Home Care & Palliative
Care
Mental Health & Addiction Services
Population & Public Health Services
HealthLine

Cardiosciences, Respiratory & Critical Care
Diagnostic Imaging, Laboratory & Nuclear
Medicine
Medical Care & Pharmacy
Surgical Care
Women's & Children's Health

Health Services Organizations
Neurosciences, Rehabilitation, Long Term
Care - Wascana Rehabilitation Centre
Rural Health Facilities

Vice President
Restorative &
Continuing Care
Sue Neville

Executive Director, Public Affairs
Roy Derrick
Director, Strategic Corporate Development
Laura Soparlo
Director, Executive Services
Alan Chapple
Executive Assistant to the President & CEO
Donna Pelat

Vice President
Primary Health Care
John Labatt

Vice President
Specialty Care
Diane Larrivee

Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region
            Organizational Structure
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Leadership 
 
Regina Qu’Appelle Regional Health Authority 
 
Murray Knuttila 
(Chairperson) 

Lloyd Boutilier 
(Vice Chairperson) 

Anita Bergman 

J. Patrick (Pat) Connolley 

Loretta Elford 

Marie Everett 

Tyronne Fisher 

Bryan Leier 

Bev Poitras 

Gary Semenchuck 

Alex Taylor 

C.R.H. (Chuck) Ward 

For biographical and contact information regarding the members of the Regina Qu’Appelle 

Regional Health Authority, visit our Web Site, rqhealth.ca, and see the Inside Story. 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

Senior Management Team 
 
Dwight Nelson 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
 
Patrick Dumelie 
Senior Vice President, Health Services 
 
Dr. Brian Laursen 
Senior Vice President, Medical Services 
 
Dr. David Ahmed 
Vice President, Medical Services 
 
Donna Evans 
Vice President, Operations Support 
 
 

Carol Klassen 
Vice President, Corporate Services 
 
John Labatt 
Vice President, Primary Health Care 
 
Diane Larrivee 
Vice President, Specialty Care 
 
Jane Lindstrom 
Vice President, Human Resources 
 
Sue Neville 
Vice President, Restorative and Continuing 
Care 

Medical Advisory Committee 
 
Dr. J.D. McHattie 

(Chairperson) 

Dr. E. Alport 

Dr. F.A. Bowen 

Dr. E. Busse 

Dr. G. Carson 

Dr. N.G. Devitt 

Dr. T. Diener 

Dr. C. Ekong 

Dr. M. Fink 

Dr. A. Holmes 

Dr. Denis Jones 

Dr. J.H. Lombard 

Dr. J.S. McMillan 

Dr. D. Natarajan 

Dr. M. Ogrady 

Dr. D. Popkin 

Dr. G. Sridhar 

Dr. S. Suri 

Dr. C. Talukdar 

Dr. E. Tse 

Dr. S. Van der Merve 

Dr. G. White

 
 
Medical Staff Association 
 
Dr. C. Ekong (President) 

Dr. M. Fink 

Dr. R.P. Knaus 

Dr. E. Poon 

Dr. G. Sridhar 

Dr. E. Tse 

Dr. C. Vuksic 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

Financial Analysis        
 
The Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region continues to provide quality health services within 

available resources. As a provincial and community provider of a full range of quality health 

services, education and research, we managed the challenges and achieved success in 2004-2005 

in meeting the diverse health needs of our communities through the strength of our people, 

partnerships and personal responsibility for health.  

Meeting Commitments and Financial Obligations 
 
The Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region achieved a balanced budget for 2004-2005, ending the 

year with an excess of revenue over expenditures of $1.4 million. This small surplus was 

achieved through significant efforts by our staff and physicians to align our human and financial 

resources with the strategic priorities of the Region and the accountabilities of the provincial 

government. 

The Region continued to maintain quality health services and meet the financial challenges of 

rising costs by implementing some targeted spending reductions, as well as continued cost 

constraints throughout the year. Cost containment strategies resulted in staffing vacancies being 

managed and, where possible, deferral of expenditures. Service reviews were undertaken in 

several areas to confirm that programs were being operated at maximum efficiency and 

effectiveness. The Region is committed to wise stewardship and accountability for the people 

and resources entrusted to us.   

Capital Commitments and Expenditures 
 
The Region was pleased to receive $12.9 million from the provincial government as a result of 

First Ministers Funding. The majority of this revenue and associated commitments will carry-

forward into 2005-2006 since this one-time funding was received in the last quarter of the fiscal 

year. The funding is enabling the Region to purchase needed equipment, including the addition 

of a second Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI) and upgrade to state of the art Computerized 

Tomography. 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

The Region also appreciates and relies on the partnerships with the Hospitals of Regina 

Foundation and the Community Trust Funds to provide significant donations for the purpose of 

purchasing equipment and contributing to the costs of building or upgrading facilities. 

During 2004-2005, planning continued on the Moosomin Integrated Health Facility and the 

Centre for Mother/Baby Care at Regina General Hospital.  This work will continue into 2005-

2006. In addition, expansion of the Broadview Medical Clinic, approved this year, will be 

completed in 2005-2006, totally funded by the community.  

Capital funding continues to be a challenge for the Region, both in terms of equipment and 

information technology and building infrastructure. The Region will continue to work with the 

provincial government to explore ways to increase funding to support these important 

investments. 

Outlook for 2005-2006 

The Region will continue to face service and financial challenges in 2005-2006.  Health care 

expenses are increasing at a higher rate than the growth of the provincial economy.  Planning for 

the future is increasing in importance in order to continue providing sustainable quality health 

services.   

We are committed to moving forward on our strategic directions and meeting the Region’s 

accountabilities under the provincial government’s Action Plan for Saskatchewan Health Care.  

We plan to enhance key services to better meet public expectations related to Primary Health 

Care initiatives, Surgical Services and Diagnostic Imaging Services.   

The commitment every day of the 7,500 people who work for and with us to provide the highest 

standards of care, and their passion for serving our patients, clients and residents, are what will 

make us successful in the year ahead. 
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Health Care Organizations and Other Third Party Relationships 
 
The Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region contracts with a variety of organizations and the 

relationship between the Health Region and these entities is an important factor in the delivery of 

quality health care services.   

The following is a list of the organizations that received funding through the Health Region in 

2004-2005: 

Autism Resource Centre Inc.    Phoenix Residential Society Inc. 
Backlin’s Ambulance Services Ltd.   Planned Parenthood Regina 
City of Regina Transit Department   Prairie Ambulance Care (1998) Ltd. 
Cosmopolitan Activity Centre    Rainbow Youth Centre Inc. 
Cupar Lions Volunteer Ambulance Raymore Community Health and Social Centre 
Extendicare (Canada) Inc.    Red Cross 
Imperial & District Ambulance    Regina Recovery Homes Inc. 
JT Ambulance Service Ltd.    Salvation Army Waterston Centre 
Living Sky Ambulance     Soo Line Ambulance 
Lumsden & Craven Seniors’ Program Inc.  615672 Sask Ltd. (Touchwood Ambulance) 
Mental Health Association/Regina Branch Inc.  University of Regina 
Milestone Assisted Living Advisory Board  Valley Ambulance Care Ltd. 
Mobile Crisis Services, Inc. 
 
An example of a contracted organization that assists the RQHR achieve expectations set out in 

the RQHR/Saskatchewan Health accountability document is Mobile Crisis Services, Inc. 

Mobile Crisis received $85,213 in funding from the Region in 2004-2005. The purpose of this 

grant is to provide after-hours crisis and support counseling services to persons in the Regina 

area who have mental health issues. These services include: 

• direct telephone intervention; 
• mobile response; 
• crisis screening and support; 
• suicide risk assessment; 
• consultation with on-call psychiatrist; and 
• consultation and referral to the RQHR’s mental health crisis response and emergency service. 
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Health Care Organizations and Other Third Party Relationships 

Mobile Crisis staff work closely with our mental health crisis response staff to ensure that 

appropriate help is always available. Last year 2,946 client contacts (16% of total contacts) 

involved people in crisis who were experiencing mental health issues. In 2003-2004, Mobile 

celebrated thirty years of providing crisis intervention services.  The organization is credited for 

its excellent work within the community and strong partnerships within the network of social, 

health and police agencies. The RQHR provides one portion of the total funding of the 

organization. 
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Regional Environmental Scan 
 

The Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region is a tertiary care centre and provides specialized health 

services to approximately 465,000 residents of southern Saskatchewan, 245,800 of whom live 

within the boundaries of the RQHR. Almost 25 per cent of our population live in rural 

communities, 15 per cent are seniors and the growing First Nations population makes up eight 

per cent. The population will be relatively stable over the next 15 years with a predicted decline 

of 2.6 per cent. 

To assist in developing and delivering programs and services that meet the needs of our clients, 

the Region collects information and conducts studies to identify key factors, population trends 

and socio-economic conditions. Every five years, Population and Public Health publishes a 

report on measures of population health, the Health Status Report.  

Because many of the factors that affect health status are non-medical, the Region works with 

community groups and other organizations to address a broad range of health-related matters. 

Examples of such partnerships include the Regina and Area Drug Strategy, KidsFirst and the 

Aboriginal Health Initiative.  
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Regional Environmental Scan 
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Regional Environmental Scan 

Non-medical Health Indicators 
 
Many factors other than a quality health care system affect the health of a population. To 

maintain and improve health, all these factors must be considered. Nine of these, known as the 

“determinants of health,” are commonly accepted measures of population health. They are: 

income and social status; social support networks; education; employment and working 

conditions; biology and genetics; physical environment; personal health practices and coping 

skills; health services; healthy child development. 

Medical Health Indicators 
 
Infant Mortality Rate 
 
Infant mortality is a well-established measure of child health and of a society’s well-being. The 

Infant Mortality Rate (IMR) in RQHR has declined from more than 9/1,000 in 1998 to 6/1000 in 

2001. Preventive care and the attention paid to maternal and newborn care contributed to this 

drop. Examples of programs and services that were part of this contribution are Population and 

Public Health Maternal & New Parents Programs (e.g., Healthiest Babies Possible; Prenatal 

Classes; Parenting Plus), the Primary Health Care initiative (e.g., Four Directions Community 

Health Centre; Al Ritchie Health Action Centre), community development initiatives, tobacco 

control and nutrition services (e.g., prenatal nutrition; food security). 

The Working Towards Excellence Project identified infant mortality as a key issue on which to 

focus.  As well, Population and Public Health Services will be working on improving infant 

mortality rates in 2005-2006. 

Infant mortality is considered any death of an infant prior to his/her first birthday.  Late term 

miscarriages and other fetal deaths (deaths prior to delivery of a live infant) are not reflected in 

the infant mortality rates.  There were 87 infant deaths in the Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region 

for the period 1998-2002, for an infant mortality rate of 6.2 infant deaths per 1,000 live births.   

Infant Mortality rate per 1,000 Live Births 
Year Rate 
1998 9.5 

1999 7.1 

2000 8.6 

2001 6.0 

2002 4.2 

1998-2002 6.2 
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Regional Environmental Scan 
Infant deaths are subdivided into the following age categories: 

• Early neonatal (0-7 days) 
• Late neonatal (8-27 days) 
• Post neonatal (28 days-1 year) 
• All infant deaths (<1 year) 
 

Number of Infant Deaths By Age at Death 
Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region, 1998-2001
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Life Expectancy 
 
In Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region between 1997 and 2001, life expectancy at birth increased, 

from 75.2 to 76.4 for males, and from 81.2 to 81.9 for females. These figures are very close to 

those for Saskatchewan and Canada as a whole.  

Life expectancy at age 65 years is an overall indicator of the effect of many different factors that 

influence death rates in older people.   In the Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region, between 1997 

and 2001, life expectancy at age 65 years increased from 16.4 to 17.1 years for males, and from 

20.5 to 21.0 years in females. Although women who have reached the age of 65 can still expect 

to live longer than men of the same age, the difference is less than the difference between the 

sexes for life expectancy at birth. This reflects the fact that males are at greater risk than females 

of dying before they reach the age of 65, primarily from injury, suicide and cardiovascular 

disease. 
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Regional Environmental Scan 
Life Expectancy at Birth by Sex, three-year average 
Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region, 1997 and 2001 

 Age Group Sex 1997 2001 
Both sexes 78.2 79.2 
Males 75.2 76.4 

Regina Qu'Appelle 
Health Region 

At birth 

Females 81.2 81.9 
Both sexes 78.5 79.0 
Males 75.6 76.2 

Saskatchewan At birth 

Females 81.4 81.8 
Both sexes 78.5 79.5 
Males 75.7 77.0 

Canada At birth 

Females 81.3 82.0 
Source: Statistics Canada, Canadian Vital Statistics, Death Database and Demographic Division 
 
 

Life Expectancy at Age 65 by Sex, three-year average 
Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region, 1997 and 2001 

 Age Group Sex 1997 2001 
Both sexes 18.6 19.1 
Males 16.4 17.1 

Regina Qu'Appelle 
Health Region 

At birth 

Females 20.5 21.0 
Both sexes 18.7 19.0 
Males 16.6 16.9 

Saskatchewan At birth 

Females 20.7 20.9 
Both sexes 18.2 18.8 
Males 16.2 17.0 

Canada At birth 

Females 20.0 20.5 
Source: Statistics Canada, Canadian Vital Statistics, Death Database and Demographic Division 
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Regional Environmental Scan 
 
Percentage of population who are overweight or obese 
 
The most recent data based on self-reported height and weight comes from the 2003 Canadian 

Community Health Survey (CCHS).   Self-reported measurements of height and weight were 

used as the basis for allocating Body Mass Index (BMI).  From this survey, 17.1 of the Regina 

Qu'Appelle Health Region residents 18 years of age or older are estimated to be obese (17.4% 

males and 17.1% females with Body Mass Index of 30 or over).  A further 36.7% of the Regina 

Qu'Appelle Health Region adults 18 years and over were estimated to be overweight (43% of 

men and 30.5% of women with a Body mass Index of 25 or more but less than 30).  Estimate 

based on BMI from the 2003 Canadian Community Health Survey show that men are more 

likely than women to be overweight, although the rates for obesity are similar in both sexes.   

The prevalence of obesity was highest in 45-64 year age group. 

Population Overweight but Not Obese 

BMI (25.0-29.9) by Age Group and Sex, Population Age 18 and Over 
Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region, 2003
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Regional Environmental Scan 

A

Forty-five per cent of Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region respondents aged 12 years and over 

reported they did not undertake leisure-time physical activity at the levels recommended to 

achieve health benefits.  More women (48.4%) than men (41.4%) reported that they were 

‘physically inactive.’ 

Active or moderately active leisure-time physical activity was most frequently reported by males 

(72.7%) and females (65.0%) aged 12-19 years, and least frequently reported by males aged 35-

44 years (48.1%) and females aged 65 years and over (33.3%). 
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Population Obesity 

 

BMI (30 or higher) by Age Group and Sex
Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region, 2003
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Source: Statistics Canada, Canadian Community Health Survey, 2003 
 
Participation in Physical Activity 
 
In 2003, 52.5% of Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region respondents in the Canadian Community 

Health Survey aged 12 years and over reported they were active or moderately active.  More 

males (55.6%) than females (49.6%) reported they were active or moderately active. 



Regional Environmental Scan 

Leisure-time physical activity by age group, Males 
Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region, 2003
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Leisure-time physical activity by age group, Females 
Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region, 2003
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Regional Environmental Scan 
 
Smoking Rates 
 
Estimates from the Canadian Community Health Survey 2003 indicate that about 49,000 Regina 

Qu'Appelle Health Region residents aged 12 years and over are current daily or occasional 

smokers.  Current smokers are those who smoke on either a daily or an occasional basis.  Daily 

smokers are those who reported smoking cigarettes every day.  Overall, 25.6% of males and 

22.9% of females aged 12 years and over were current daily or occasional smokers.  The 

proportion of current daily or occasional smokers was greater for males than females in three of 

five age groups.   

 
Smoking status (percent), by age group, household population aged 12 years and over, 
Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region, Both sexes 
Characteristics Total 12 

Years and 
over 

12-19 years 20-34 years 35-44 years 45-64 years 65 years and 
over 

Current daily or 
occasional 
smoker  

24.2 15.3 35.3 32.4 21.5 9.6 

Former smoker 38.5 13.2 30.6 33.4 51.2 56.9 
Never smoked 36.9 69.8 34.1 34.2 27.3 32.6 
Source: Statistics Canada, Canadian Community Health Survey, 2003 
 
Smoking status (per cent), by age group, household population aged 12 years and over, Regina 
Qu'Appelle Health Region, Males 
Characteristics Total 12 

Years and 
over 

12-19 years 20-34 years 35-44 years 45-64 years 65 years and 
over 

Current daily or 
occasional 
smoker  

25.6 12.4 42.1 37.3 17.5 10.2 

Former smoker 42.6 17.5 29.2 32.1 58.0 76.8 

Never smoked 31.5 67.6 28.7 30.6 24.5 12.9 
Source: Statistics Canada, Canadian Community Health Survey, 2003 
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Regional Environmental Scan 
Smoking status (percent), by age group, household population aged 12 years and over, 
Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region, Females 
Characteristics Total 12 

Years and 
over 

12-19 years 20-34 years 35-44 years 45-64 years 65 years and 
over 

Current daily or 
occasional 
smoker  

22.9 18.4 28.8 27.4 25.3 9.0 

Former smoker 34.6 - 31.8 34.7 44.6 42.0 

Never smoked 42.1 72.2 39.4 38 30.0 47.4 
Source: Statistics Canada, Canadian Community Health Survey, 2003 

 
Self-Rated Health Status 
 
According to the Canadian Community Health Survey, 2003, the great majority of the Regina 

Qu'Appelle Health Region residents aged 12 years and over considered themselves to be in good 

health, 23% rating their health as excellent, 38.5% as very good and 26.8% as good.  The overall 

distribution of responses differed by age group.   

Self-Reported Health Status by Age Group Population Aged 12 and Over 
Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region, 2003
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Regional Environmental Scan 
Age-Adjusted Diabetes Prevalence Rate 
 
In 2001, the Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region had an age-sex adjusted diabetes prevalence rate 

of 38.9 cases per thousand.  This rate was below the provincial rate of 41.3 cases per thousand.   

 

Age specific Diabetes Prevalence Rates 2000/2001
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Self-Reported Diabetes Rates 
 
Self-reported diabetes is defined as any Canadian Community Health Survey, 2003, respondent 

who answered 'yes' to the question about diabetes.  In 2003, of the total population (200,832), 

there were 6,654 cases of self-reported diabetes.  Male respondents had a prevalence rate of 

35.85, females 30.55 and the total population 33.13 (all rates are per 1000 population).  Male 

respondents had a higher prevalence of self-reported diabetes than the female respondents. This 

is consistent with the provincial self-reported statistics showing higher prevalence among males 

in Saskatchewan.  
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Regional Environmental Scan 
Injury Hospitalization Rates 
 
During 2003-2004, 767 children aged 0 to 19 years were admitted to Regina Qu'Appelle Health 

Region hospitals for treatment of injuries.  Of the 767 injury hospitalizations, 667 resulted from 

unintentional injuries (e.g., motor vehicle traffic accidents).  Age-specific hospitalization rates 

for males 0 to 19 years (13.9 hospitalized per 1,000 covered population) were higher than 

females (9.4 hospitalized per 1,000 covered population).  Males had a higher hospitalization rate 

than females for intentional injuries inflicted by another person and for transportation and 

drowning as external causes for hospital admission.  The rate for intentional self-inflicted injury 

was higher among females. 
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A Continuum of Care 
 
A Diverse Range of Services 

 
As a tertiary care centre, the Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region provides specialized health care 

services to clients living in southern Saskatchewan and beyond. 

The RQHR is one of the most integrated health delivery agencies in the country. We offer a full 

range of hospital, rehabilitation, community and public health, long term care and home care 

services. These integrated services are offered in the areas of community services, rehabilitation 

and acute care.  

Community Services 
 
Community-delivered services are a vital component of an integrated health care system. 

Community services, in conjunction with acute care and rehabilitation services, provide a 

complete health care program for residents of the Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region. These 

services include: 

• Mental Health and Addictions Services 

• Emergency Medical Services 

• Hearing Aid Plan 

• Home Care Services 

• Long Term Care Services 

• Native Health Services 

• Population and Public Health Services 

The Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region has community health centres that provide 

outreach, health promotion and education services throughout the Region.  These centres 

include: 

• Al Ritchie Health Action Centre (Regina) 

• Cupar Health Centre 

• Fort Qu’Appelle Community Health Services Centre 

• Four Directions Community Health Centre (Regina) 

• Grenfell Health Centre
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A Continuum of Care 

• Long Lake Valley Integrated Facility (Imperial) 

• Montmartre Health Centre 

• Raymore Community Health and Social Centre (affiliate) 

• Southey Health Action Centre 

• Whitewood Community Health Centre 

Long Term Care in the Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region is provided by Region-owned 

and operated facilities and through affiliates contracted to the Region.  These include:  

• All Nations Healing Hospital (Fort Qu’Appelle) (affiliate) 

• Balcarres Integrated Care Centre 

• Broadview and District Centennial Lodge 

• Cupar and District Nursing Home (affiliate) 

• Eastern Saskatchewan Pioneer Lodge (Moosomin) 

• Echo Lodge (Fort Qu’Appelle) 

• Extendicare (Elmview, Parkside and Sunset) (Regina) (affiliates) 

• Golden Prairie Home (Indian Head) 

• Grenfell Pioneer Home 

• Lakeside Home (Wolseley) 

• Long Lake Valley Integrated Facility (Imperial) 

• Lumsden and District Heritage Home (affiliate) 

• Monmartre Health Centre 

• Qu’Appelle House (Regina ) (affiliate) 

• Regina Lutheran Home (affiliate) 

• Regina Pioneer Village (affiliate) 

• Santa Maria Senior Citizens Home (affiliate) 

• Silver Height Special Care Home (Raymore) 

• Wascana Rehabilitation Centre 

• Whitewood Community Health Centre 

• William Booth Special care Home (Regina) (affiliate) 
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A Continuum of Care 
Hospital Care   

 
Within the Region are two Provincial hospitals – the Regina General Hospital and Pasqua 

Hospital. These hospitals serve the residents of southern Saskatchewan by providing a wide 

range of acute care as well as specialized services. 

Hospital services include: 

• Ambulatory Care Services 

• Cardiosciences 

• Critical Care Services 

• Diagnostic Imaging Services 

• Emergency Care Services 

• Family Medicine 

• Gastroenterology and Hepatology 

• Gynecology/Urology 

• Internal Medicine 

• Laboratory Services 

• Neurosciences 

• Oncology 

• Orthopedics 

• Palliative Care Services 

• Pharmaceutical Services 

• Psychiatry 

• Pulmonary Function 

• Renal Care 

• Respiratory Care Services 

• Sleep Disorders Program 

• Surgical Care Services 

• SWADD (System Wide Admission/Discharge Department) 

• Therapy Services 

• Occupational Therapy 
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A Continuum of Care 

• Physical Therapy 

• Speech Therapy 

• Women’s and Children’s Health 

• Neonatal Intensive Care 

• Obstetrics 

• Pediatric Services 

The Region also has seven community hospitals that provide hospital care: 

• All Nations Healing Hospital (Fort Qu’Appelle) (affiliate) 

• Balcarres Integrated Care Centre 

• Broadview Hospital 

• Indian Head Hospital 

• Moosomin Hospital 

• St. Joseph’s Integrated Care Centre (Lestock) 

• Wolseley Memorial Union Hospital
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A Continuum of Care 
 

Hospital Care  
2002-2003 2003-2004  2004-2005  

Admissions  33,788 34,445 33,568 
Average Daily Census 573 612 579.9 
Average Length of Stay (days) 6.40 6.27 6.96 
Births/Newborns Admissions 2,934 3,082 2,877 
Emergency Visits 93,197 97,772 100,488 
Radiology Examinations 141,777 142,083 141,995 
CT Scanner Examinations 35,215 43,108 43,885 
Nuclear Medicine Procedures 12,446 12,759 12,065 
Physical Therapy Visits 87,282 83,431 92,312 
Occupational Therapy Visits 14,143 13,557 16,006 
Outpatient Registrations 219,181 275,497 269,730 
Figures for 2002-2003 are for the former Regina Health District only.  
 
 
 
 
Acute Care Surgery  

2002-2003 2003-2004  2004-2005  

Total Number of Patients on Surgical Wait List  11,091 11,824 10,946 

Pre-Admission Clinic Visits  6,516 6,872 6,947 
Inpatient Surgery -  day of admission  4,377 4,780 4,658 
Inpatient Surgery – non-day of admission 3,988 5,783 4,972 
Outpatient Surgery – operating room 11,493 9,773 9,082 
Outpatient Surgery – Hospital Clinic 15,155 16,217 16,627 
Total Surgeries 35,016 36,553 35,339 
Figures for 2002-2003 are for the former Regina Health District only.  
 
 
 
 
Laboratory Services 

2002-2003 2003-2004  2004-2005  

Laboratory Units  19,794,878 24,961,062 21,537,700 
Figures for 2002-2003 are for the former Regina Health District. 
Figures for 2003-2004 are for the former Regina and Pipestone health districts. 
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A Continuum of Care 
Rehabilitation Services 

Rehabilitation Services programs are offered throughout the Region. These programs are 

designed to help children and adults who have been ill or in an accident regain their quality of 

life. These services include: 

• Acquired Brain Injury Outreach 

• Adult Rehabilitation Program 

• Children’s Program 

• Functional Rehabilitation Program 

• Prosthetics/Orthotics 
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A Continuum of Care 
 
Regina Emergency Medical Services  

2002-2003 2003-2004  2004-2005  

Rural Responses  485 562 567 

Out-of-Region 91 115 105 
Interfacility 2,813 2,598 2,871 
Urban Responses 10,829 11,524 11,405 
No–Transport Calls 3,587 4,188 4,065 
Total Calls 17,805 18,987 19,013 
Regina EMS was 91% compliant to responding to emergency situations in under 8:59 minutes in 2004/2005. 
The National standard for major urban centres is a compliance rate of 90%. 
 
 
 
 
 
Home Care  

2002-2003 2003-2004  2004-2005  

Admissions 5,174 6,298 6,822 
Nursing Hours 78,824 85,169 79,244 
Number of Meals 37,724 52,977 48,575 
Occupational Therapy Hours 5,597 6,037 5,644 
Physical Therapy Hours 6,072 6,405 6,477 
Support Hours 7,986 7,423 6,549 
Social Work Hours 4,160 3,607 4,116 
Volunteer Services – Hours 11,798 9,344 9,630 
Figures for 2002-2003 are for the former Regina Health District only. 
 
 
 
 
 
Immunization 

2002-2003 2003-2004  2004-2005  

Number of Doses – Child Health Clinics  13,946 18,572 19,146 

Number of School Children Immunized in School 11,150 12,070 12,537 

Adult Doses – Clinic Visits n/a n/a 1,787 

Influenza Coverage Rates – People over 65 years 65.6% 70% 71% 

Travel Clinic 6,212 7,540 9,244 
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A Continuum of Care 
 

Service Access Guide 
 
The Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region publishes a Service Access Guide as part of both 

the Regina and Regina District SaskTel Phonebooks. This Guide is the "Green Pages" 

section, which immediately follows the blue pages of government listings. The inside 

outlines the institutional and community programs and services provided by the Region 

and lists important contact information. Further information about what the Region 

offers is available through our Web site at www.rqhealth.ca. 
 
Long Term Care Clients in Hospital Awaiting Placement 

2002-2003 2003-2004  2004-2005  

April 33 8 10 

May 35 5 14 
June 30 16 11 
July 33 18 9 
August 25 25 15 
September 26 27 10 
October 24 24 14 
November 15 20 16 
December 11 11 19 
January 14 12 25 
February 0 11 26 
March 4 17 17 
 
 
 
Concerns Registered with Client Representative 

2001-2002 2002-2003  2003-2004  

Number of Concerns 647 978 1,089 

Percentage of Acute Care Patients registering a concern 2.23 2.84 3.24 

Average time to resolve all concerns (days) 12.0 11.6 8.35 

Average time to resolve non-complex concerns (days) 4.3 4.0 3.65 
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A Continuum of Care 
Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region or its affiliates provide care or administer services from the 
following sites. 
 

Regina Facilities 
Location Site Gross Sq. Ft. Lease/Own 
325 Victoria Ave. Al Ritchie Health Action Centre 2,080 Lease 
2110 Hamilton Street Alcohol & Drug Services, I.T.,  Mental Health -Adult, Public Health Central 60,888 Lease 
1650 Sask. Drive Box 3930 Emergency Medical Services – Central 4,500 Own 
5730 Rochdale Blvd. Box 3930 Emergency Medical Services – North 1,000 Own 
3705 Hill Ave. Box 3930 Emergency Medical Services – South 2,800 Own 
500 Arcola Ave. Emergency Medical Services - Storage Building 2,992 Lease 
3510 – 5th Ave. Four Directions Community Health Centre 5,202 Lease 
1048 Albert Street Harm Reduction Program 1,962 Lease 
2755 Avonhurst Dr. HealthLine (Emergency Medical Services) 8,606 Lease 
2755 Avonhurst Dr. RQHR Warehouse 8,297 Lease 
1920 Broad Street Hearing Aid Plan 6,300 Lease 
4211 Albert Street Home Care / SWADD / Aboriginal Health / Quality Imp. / Central Sched. 25,667 Lease 
1692 Albert Street Kinship Centre (Mental Health Services) 4,000 Lease 
1001 Montreal Street Laundry Services 40,000 Own 
1601 College Ave. Mental Health Services - Child & Youth 14,768 Lease 
4101 Dewdney Avenue Pasqua Hospital 597,578 Own 
1911 Park Street Public Health - East Office 5,570 Lease 
204 Wascana Street Public Health – North Office 7,246 Own 
1440 – 14th Avenue Regina General Hospital 1,028,489 Own 
2180 – 23rd Avenue Wascana Rehabilitation Centre 485,070 Own 
 Total Gross Feet, Regina Facilities 2,313,015  

 
 

Affiliates: 
Location Site Gross Sq. Ft. Lease/Own 
Fort Qu'Appelle All Nations Healing Hospital 56,901 n/a 
Box 310, Cupar Cupar & District Nursing Home 19,371 n/a 
4125 Rae St., Regina Extendicare Elmview 18,500 n/a 
4540 Rae St., Regina Extendicare Parkside 56,259 n/a 
260 Sunset Dr., Regina Extendicare Sunset 40,000 n/a 
Lumsden Lumsden & District Heritage Home 20,000 n/a 
1425 College Ave., Regina Qu'Appelle House info. not avail. n/a 
1925 - 5th Ave. N., Regina Regina Lutheran Home 50,452 n/a 
430 Pioneer Dr., Regina Regina Pioneer Village 163,608 n/a 
4215 Regina Ave., Regina Santa Maria Senior Citizens Home 107,185 n/a 
50 Angus Rd. William Booth Special Care Home 46,632 n/a 
 Total Gross Feet, Affiliates 578,908  
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Rural Facilities 
Location Site Gross Sq. Ft. Lease/Own 
100 South Elgin St., Balcarres Balcarres Integrated Care Centre 15,543 Own 
606 Main St., Broadview Broadview / Whitewood Home Care 1,259 Own 
Calgary St., Broadview Broadview Centennial Lodge 18,998 Own 
901 Nina St., Broadview Broadview Union Hospital 17,136 Own 
Box 100, Cupar, SK Cupar Health Centre 13,608 Own 
356 Windover Ave., Moosomin Eastern Sask. Pioneer Lodge 6,956 Own 
433 Windover Ave., Moosomin Eastern Sask. Pioneer Nursing Home 15,436 Own 
Box 1790, Ft. Qu’Appelle Echo Lodge 21,128 Own 
916 Eden St., Indian Head Golden Prairie Home 23,272 Own 
721 Stella St., Grenfell Grenfell Health Centre 119,020 Own 
Regina Ave., Grenfell Grenfell Housing Units (4 duplexes) 3,627 Own 
802 Wolseley Ave., Box 970 Grenfell Regional Office 3,150 Own 
300 Hospital St., Indian Head Indian Head Union Hospital 20,775 Own 
Ouimet St., Wolseley Lakeside Nursing Home 49,245 SPM Lease 
Box 180, Imperial, SK Long Lake Valley Integrated Facility 20,325 Own 
237 – 2nd Ave. E., Montmartre Montmartre Health Centre 20,032 Own 
Windover and Broadway Moosomin Housing Units (8 duplexes, 1 four-plex) 12,250 Own 
Moosomin Moosomin Public Health 1,642 Own 
320 Gertie St., Moosomin Moosomin Union Hospital 42,690 Own 
710 Regina Ave., Grenfell Pioneer Home 17,997 Own 
Box 549, Raymore Silver Heights Special Care Home 28,000 Own 
280 Burns Ave., Box 519 Southey Health Action Centre 200 Lease 
Box 280, Lestock St. Joseph’s Integrated Care Centre 14,338 Own 
178 Boundary Ave.N.,Box 1819 Touchwood/Qu’Appelle District Health Centre 8,400 Own 
South Railway, Wapella Wapella Clinic Building 803 Own 
921 Gambetta St., Whitewood Whitewood Community Health Centre 16,856 Own 
Ouimet St., Wolseley Wolseley Memorial Union Hospital 13,616 Own 
 Total Gross Feet, Rural Facilities 526,302  
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Staffing 
 
 
 
Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region Employees (full-time equivalent positions)  

2002-2003 2003-2004  2004-2005  

Support Staff * 2,458.27 2,500.34 2,537.27 

Nursing 1,872.77 1,926.01 1,949.61 
Other professionals 547.60 610.90 630.56 
Technical* 467.63 485.76 456.5 
Management Staff 237.55 253.86 257.97 
Physicians 55.04 55.55 54.44 
Total 5,638.86 5,832.42 5,886.35 
*Some of the changes in these categories are a result of reclassification of some positions. 
Unionized workers make up approximately 92 per cent of the RQHR workforce. Non-unionized, non-supervisory staff comprise three 
per cent, managers make up four per cent and staff physicians are slightly below one per cent. 
  
 
 
Total Sick Leave by Union Affiliation 2004-2005  

Union Affiliation # of hours paid out 
Average # of hours per employee 

(full-time equivalent positions) 

CUPE 340,002 93 

HSAS 37,031 66 

OOS 21,255 45 

RWDSU 6,432 99 

SUN 158,297 97 
 
 
Employees of Affiliated Special Care Homes (full-time equivalent positions) 

2002-2003 2003-2004  2004-2005  

Support Staff 1,096.95 1,108.56 1,103.95 

Nursing 169.20 173.54 177.18 

Management Staff 47.49 47.69 47.69 

Other Professionals 25.23 25.26 25.26 

TOTAL 1,339.07 1,355.05 1,354.08 
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Staffing 
 
 
Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region Medical Staff 

2002 2003 2004 

Associate 68 51 35 

Active 347 374 377 

Regional Affiliates 52 58 51 

Visiting Consultants 27 28 23 

Locums 1 3 6 

TOTAL 495 514 492 
 
Figures for 2002 are for the Regina Health District only. 
 
 
 
Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region Medical Staff Turnover 

2002 2003 2004 

New Appointments (does not include locums) 50 49 26 

Resignations 16 7 18 

Retired 3 7 3 

Net Increase 31 35 5 
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Initiatives, Accomplishments, Challenges and Future Directions 
 
Since its formation in 2002, the Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region has adopted a strategic 

framework that lays out the Region’s Vision, Mission and Values, and used those values as 

direction for the development of an operating plan. The Region’s Operating Plan, 2004-2009, has 

seven Strategic Themes and 28 objectives.  

 
RQHR’s Strategic Themes relate to the Government of Saskatchewan’s Provincial Health Goals. 

The following chart illustrates the relationship between the Government of Saskatchewan goals 

and RQHR’s Strategic Themes. 
 
Provincial Goals and Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region Strategic Themes 
 
Provincial Health Goals 
Improved Access to 
Quality Health 
Services 
 
 
 
 
 

Effective Health 
Promotion and 
Disease Prevention 
 
 
 

Retain, Recruit and 
Train Health 
Providers 
 
 
 

A Sustainable 
Efficient 
Accountable 
Quality Health 
System 
 
 
 

Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region Strategic Themes 
Specialized 
Services 
Strengthen RQHR as 
a provincial resource 
and referral centre 
through 
determination of 
services best 
delivered in 
Saskatchewan and in 
western Canada. 
 

Aboriginal Health 
Improve the health 
status outcomes of 
Aboriginal people 
through 
collaboration. 
 

Positive, Innovative 
Work Environment 
Personal pride and 
accountability that is 
respectful of all 
relationships. 
 

Sustainable Quality 
Service 
Effective service 
delivery within 
available resources. 
 

Knowledge, 
Teaching and 
Research 
Grow as an 
academic health 
services organization 
that supports, 
creates and applies 
knowledge. 
 

Primary Health 
Care 
Improve health 
status through 
supporting 
individuals and 
communities in 
responsibility for their 
own health through 
service redesign. 

 
 

Client and Public 
Confidence 
Knowledge and trust 
that health services 
are appropriate and 
meet individual and 
community needs. 
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Initiatives, Accomplishments, Challenges and Future Directions 

Regional Operating Plan 
 
The Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region Operating Plan, 2004-2009, is the map that will lead us 

to our Vision, and our preferred future as a health care organization.  

The Operating Plan lays out the steps the RQHR is going to take to achieve its seven Strategic 

Themes. There are 28 objectives that support the Strategic Themes. The Region has consciously 

selected these objectives to focus its efforts and resources.  They will propel the organization 

forward on its journey to becoming the health care provider it has envisioned in its Mission. To 

achieve each of the objectives, there are specific program initiatives that will be undertaken by 

various areas of the Region.  

As each year passes, the objectives may change as program initiatives are completed and goals 

are achieved. But what will remain constant are our Values, especially our People and 

Leadership Philosophies. 

In the following pages there are examples of our initiatives and accomplishments for 2004-2005, 

the challenges we will face, and our plans for 2005-2006. These are organized according to 

strategic theme.  

The Strategic Themes and supporting objectives are: 
 
Strategic Theme 1 – Sustainable Quality Service 
Effective service delivery within available resources. 
 
Objectives 

1. Develop and implement quality improvement strategy. 
2. Align service delivery with available resources. 
3. Asset and infrastructure redevelopment plan.  
4. Improve information and business processes to support decision-making and effective 

resource management. 
5. Develop key business and Regional Health Authority partnerships to support investments 

and cost-effective services. 
6. Development of consistent practices and the standardization of policies and programming 

throughout the Region. 
7. Continue development and response to emergent population health prevention and 

intervention issues. 
8. Fulfill and refine accountabilities to Minister of Health. 
9. Define and implement a long-term vision of sustainable quality service. 
10. Improve workplace safety. 
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Initiatives, Accomplishments, Challenges and Future Directions 
Strategic Theme 2 – Positive, Innovative Work Environment 
Personal pride and accountability that is respectful of all relationships. 
 
Objectives 

11. Establish and implement a human resource management plan. 
12. Establish and implement a quality workplace plan and strategy. 
13. Improve communication to staff at every level. 
14. Identify high-risk human resource areas and develop strategies to support. 
15. Improve collective bargaining environment and union relationships and resulting 

outcomes. 
16. Redefine and enhance medical leadership and partnerships. 

 
Strategic Theme 3 – Aboriginal Health 
Improve health status outcomes of Aboriginal people through collaboration. 
 
Objective 

17. Improve capacity to support and re-orient health services that are culturally appropriate 
and effective. 

 
Strategic Theme 4 – Primary Health Care 
Improve health status through supporting individuals and communities in responsibility for their 
own health through service redesign. 
 
Objective 

18. Develop and implement a primary health care plan. 
 
Strategic Theme 5 – Specialized Services 
Strengthen RQHR as a provincial resource and referral centre through the determination of 
services best delivered in Saskatchewan and in western Canada. 
 
Objective 

19. Develop integrated service delivery plan(s) to improve access. 
 
Strategic Theme 6 – Knowledge, Teaching and Research 
Grow as an academic health services organization that supports, creates and applies knowledge. 
 
Objectives 

20. Develop information/knowledge plan. 
21. Develop and pursue RQHR research priorities. 
22. Engaging academic institutions to support and advance the population health agenda. 
23. Enhance strategic partnership with academic and learning institutions. 
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Initiatives, Accomplishments, Challenges and Future Directions 
Strategic Theme 7 – Client and Public Confidence, Teaching and Research 
Knowledge and trust that health services are appropriate and meet individual and community 
needs. 
 
Objectives 

24. Positive transfer of Strasbourg health services. 
Note: This objective is already completed. It was decided, after consultation with the community and the Saskatoon Health 
Region, that Strasbourg’s health services will remain with the SHR. 

25. Improve rural urban inter-relations and inclusiveness. 
26. Develop a reputation management plan. 
27. Enhance Senior Management and Executive Director profile. 
28. Enhance security and confidentiality of personal health information. 

 

Strategic Theme 1 – Sustainable Quality Service 
Effective service delivery within available resources. 
 
Addictions Services 
 
RQHR Addictions Services provides individual and group treatment for our clients. 

Saskatchewan Health reports that RQHR completed treatment on 67.5% of individual inpatient 

clients and 71.1% of outpatient clients. These numbers reflect only individual treatment and 

assessment and do not include those who were treated in group therapies.  

 
Addiction Services Statistics for 2003/2004 

Grenfell office   88
Fort Qu'Appelle office  265
Regina Alcohol and Drug office 
Youth 
Adults (including SGI) 

 327
2238

Methadone Clinic  125
Problem Gambling Program unavailable
Recovery Manor (now closed)   58
Pine Lodge in Indian Head  619
Regina Detox Centre 1150
TOTAL 4870

 
Communicable Disease Control  
 
The Communicable Disease team is responsible for the investigation of all non-enteric reportable 

diseases in the Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region, including sexually transmitted diseases, and 

outbreaks in long term care facilities, schools, and other facilities.  
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Approximately 200 persons are newly diagnosed with hepatitis C each year. Many of these 

persons are diagnosed when involved in alcohol and drug rehabilitation, and methadone 

programs.  

Preliminary numbers show 20 newly diagnosed HIV cases in 2004, up from 12 in 2003. HIV 

case management time in 2004 was approximately 100 hours per case.  This included working 

with each newly identified person to provide initial counseling on risk reduction, arranging 

consultation with the Infectious Disease Clinic, and locating each named contact to provide 

counselling and testing. Risk behaviors for new HIV infections continue to be mixed. However, 

in the last year there was a rise in infected persons who reported injection drug use.  

Time spent in investigation and management of outbreaks in long term care facilities has been 

steadily increasing as the number of reported outbreaks increased to 35 in 2004, up from 29 in 

2003. The increase appears to have continued with 17 outbreaks investigated in the first quarter 

of 2005.  

 
Communicable Disease and Sexual Health Program 
 
The Communicable Disease and Sexual Health Program functions as both a single unit and 

individually, as three smaller teams, under the management of the Deputy Medical Health 

Officer. The program design is unique and unlike any other in Saskatchewan. Public Health 

Nurses, and support staff for the three focus areas of the program, Communicable Disease 

Control, Street Project harm reduction, and Sexually Transmitted Disease Clinic, work together. 

The benefit has been that staff members function cohesively, have better working knowledge of 

all communicable diseases, and provide seamless service to clients.  

Encouraging Physical Activity 
 
Regular physical activity plays a key role in the health of people of all ages.  The Regina 

Qu'Appelle Health Region is working with the provincial in motion initiative to encourage 

Saskatchewan residents to become more active.   

Building on a Movement 
 
The Region, in partnership with the Aspen Grove School District, the South East Saskatchewan 

Association for Culture Recreation and Sport and Saskatchewan in motion, developed the 
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“Building on a Movement” Leadership Development Workshop.  This workshop was designed 

to provide community volunteers with the skills and confidence necessary to provide safe, 

effective, sustainable physical activity programming in their communities.  The pilot workshop 

was held in Wolseley on March 11, 2005.  The success of this pilot workshop, and feedback 

from it, will be used to develop future workshops in other communities during the upcoming 

year. 

Seniors’ Physical Activity Sampler 
 
To introduce Regina seniors to some of the great activities available in our community, the 

fourth annual Regina Seniors’ Physical Activity Sampler was held. Demonstrations of yoga, 

belly dancing, pilates, line dancing and tai chi were held.  Also featured was the Building Better 

Bones exercise program for those with Osteoporosis. 

The Sampler was organized by the Committee Supporting Healthy Active Living for Older 

Adults (CSHALOP). CSHALOP is a working group of Regina in motion. The Regina 

Qu'Appelle Health Region is represented on the CSHALOP working group. 

Physically active seniors can benefit with reduced levels of heart disease, decreased falls and 

injuries, a healthier body weight, reduced blood pressure and a reduced risk of stroke, 

depression, colon cancer and premature death. Refreshments and entertainment were also a part 

of this free event. 

 
Institutional Supportive Care 
 
The RQHR is well positioned to address the care needs of residents in need of Institutional 

Supportive Care. The Restorative and Continuing Care portfolio has several community-based 

programs and services to support clients remaining in the community. As care needs increase, 

there is a corresponding increase in access to, and utilization of, these programs and services. 

Placement in a long term care facility to the first available bed, based on need, is approved by the 

Program Access Committee when living in the community is no longer possible. The placement 

process also takes into account client preference for location. Since the amalgamation of the 

former health districts into one Health Region, the RQHR has made significant progress in 

establishing consistent practices and processes throughout the Region. 
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KidsFirst 
 
Since the inception of the program several years ago, the Kids First interagency management 

team has conducted an extensive evaluation of its program for high-risk families with young 

children. In 2004-2005 the evaluation showed positive gains in families that entered the program 

two years ago. Gains include changes in the life circumstances, such as entering the workforce, 

and changes in individual capacity, such as the parent setting personal goals and using strength 

based parenting methods. 

KidsFirst works with several RQHR departments and other community partners to find 

innovative and effective methods to respond to the needs of their clients and families. 

Laboratory Services 
 
Enhanced Community Laboratory Services 

Gamma-Dynacare Medical Laboratories began providing service at six locations in Regina. 

Some sites feature extended hours of service, before and after regular working hours, and on 

weekends.  

Laboratory Accreditation 

The Regina General Hospital and Pasqua Hospital laboratories received an "Accreditation with 

Distinction" designation from the College of American Pathologists (CAP) after a 

comprehensive two-day examination by CAP investigators. CAP is considered a global leader in 

setting standards for excellence in the practice of laboratory medicine.  

Nutrition Initiatives in Schools 

Schools provide a vital, supportive environment for improving the nutritional status of school-

age children within the Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region. RQHR Population and Public Health 

Nutritionists and Public Health Nurses, in conjunction with local school divisions, have been 

working to find fun and educational ways to convince children to reduce the amount of junk food 

they eat and opt for healthier food and beverage choices.  

The Health Region has taken an active role, participating on the Regina Public School Board 

Vending of Food and Beverage in Schools Committee, which provided recommendations 

regarding a policy to discontinue soft drink sales in schools. Other activities in which the Region 

took part include holding the first nutrition workshop for the nutrition coordinators and staff of 
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Community Schools, facilitating nutrition education sessions for teachers and holding a Nutrition 

Month Contest for school students. 

The Health Region sees its work in this area as just beginning, and will continue to work with 

educators to help children understand the importance of eating healthy food. 

Pandemic Planning Continues 
 
The Health Region is continuing its planning efforts to deal with a possible influenza pandemic. 
To date the planning has included: 

surveillance; • 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 

• 
• 
• 

mass immunization campaigns; and  
clinical management guidelines.  

 
Work in these and other areas continues, as we become more familiar with the complexity of the 

task at hand.  

Planning is being examined in the following areas: 

anti-viral medication use and stockpiling;  
Public Health measures that may be needed;  
establishing community sites for rapid patient triage;  
maintenance of medical staff and facility infrastructure during pandemic;  
ethics; and  
expansion of basic knowledge to staff and the greater community. 

 
RQHR is working with strategic partners to prepare for a possible influenza pandemic.  

The Region and the City of Regina have done emergency planning and efforts are continuing 
to ensure a smooth response during an emergency.  
Work with rural municipalities is being expanded.  
Linkages with the local school boards are well established. 
Saskatchewan Health is assisting us with overall guidelines and ensuring the involvement of 
other provincial departments and agencies. 

 
Overall, progress has been made to ensure that we are as prepared as possible. Given that we do 

not know how the problem of pandemic will unfold, we have to approach planning as a 

continuous process, constantly evolving and adapting as we move forward.  

Influenza Pandemic Plan for Volunteers 
 
Part of the Health Region's preparations for an imminent Influenza pandemic includes a plan to 

have volunteers assist Health Region staff wherever they are needed. Spiritual Care and 
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Volunteer Services in Regina established a plan that will provide volunteers to support work at 

the Regina General Hospital, Pasqua Hospital, Wascana Rehabilitation Centre and with 

Population and Public Health Services at immunization clinics once a vaccine is available. Along 

with providing volunteers from the existing pool, the plan includes offering a quick, 

comprehensive screening, training and placement program for people from the community who 

come forward to help during the pandemic. 

Quality Improvement 
 
The Health Region established a Quality Improvement Unit and hired a director and two Quality 

Improvement Co-ordinators. The Unit is working to build a culture of quality improvement, and 

to develop the capacity within the Health Region to undertake effective quality improvement 

work. A framework has been developed that identifies six areas of quality improvement 

initiatives in the Region, from system-wide initiatives to small, localized initiatives. The 

initiatives keep patient safety at the forefront, manage risk, support the technical delivery of 

services and improve access to the Region’s services.  Work will continue in developing ways to 

implement these six components and in defining a long term vision for Quality Improvement in 

the Region. 

One of the challenges in achieving quality improvement is managing the scope and reaching all 

locations in the Health Region in all disciplines. A challenge will be in finding ways to make the 

initiatives work and yet be flexible enough to apply across disciplines and locations. 

Regina and Area Drug Strategy Development 
 
The Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region has been very involved in leadership of the Regina and 

Area Drug Strategy since its inception in 2002.  The strategy is a consortium of 20 agencies 

having an interest in the impact of addictions in our community. Mental Health and Addictions 

Services provides representation on various committees that aim to bring effective initiatives and 

services to the Region.  

Mental Health and Addictions Services representatives were part of a committee that submitted a 

proposal to the federal government to create a drug treatment court in Regina. If approved, it 

would be the first in the province, and only the third such court in Canada. The court would deal 

with offenders whose crimes were committed because of addictions and have court-ordered 

Annual Report 2004-2005 48 



Initiatives, Accomplishments, Challenges and Future Directions 
treatment and support services designed to help the offender and prevent further criminal 

behavior. 

RQHR staff also made progress toward the creation of a Brief Detox and Homeless Shelter for 

people who cycle through the justice and/or health system due to addictions issues. An array of 

services would be available to more effectively intervene and support the rehabilitation process 

for this challenging population.  

Sexually Transmitted Disease Clinic 
 
The STD clinic tests, diagnoses and treats about 20% of all confirmed cases of STD in the 

Region, and examines approximately 31% of related contacts. Additionally, a weekly outreach 

clinic is provided to inmates of the Regina Provincial Correctional Center.  

Chlamydia, in particular, is on the rise across Canada, and we are part of the Provincial 

committee that is developing a strategy to reduce rates in Saskatchewan. Currently the 

Chlamydia rates per 100,000 population in the RQHR are 253.3 for males and 457.1 for females.  

Sexual Health is also one of the areas that have been targeted by the recent Population and Public 

Health Strategic Plan. Input from front-line staff, community partners, and clients is being 

gathered. This opportunity to explore ideas, and visions related to development of sexual health 

services for our Region will lead us forward for the next three to five years.  

 
Street Project  
 
The Street Project is a harm reduction program that has rapidly expanded since its inception in 

1992. Public health nurses and community workers provide clean needles and other related 

equipment, such as sharps containers, to injection drug users. Staff work out of two fixed sites, 

including the STD clinic, and Carmichael Outreach, which is a community-based NGO. In 2004, 

approximately 1.6 million needles were exchanged, compared to 191 in 1992. 

We have approached the City of Regina, Regina Police Service and Regina Fire Department to 

support installation of community sharps drop boxes. The actual number of needles returned by 

injection drug users is up. The overall return rate, however, is down, ranging from 87% to 94% 

depending upon site.  We are aware that users attend from smaller centers in RQHR, as well as 
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from other health regions and First Nations Communities, and it is unlikely that they are 

returning all their needles.  

The third study of injection drug users in Regina since 2000 was completed in April 2005. 

Results are not yet available. The results from the previous studies resulted in changes to 

Methodone programming in Regina and development of the Regina and Area Drug Strategy.  

Tobacco Control and Smoke-free Public Places 
 

The health of Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region residents depends on environments that support 

healthy lifestyle choices.   

The Tobacco Control Act, passed in June 2004, prohibits smoking in enclosed public spaces 

including restaurants, bars, casinos, bingo halls, private clubs, billiards halls and bowling centres. 

The increase in smoke-free public places will save lives and prevent illnesses within our Region.   

Members of the Regina Qu’Appelle Regional Health Authority and staff of the Region, 

particularly those from Population and Public Health Services, were instrumental in paving the 

way for the passage of this legislation. They worked diligently in creating public awareness, 

educating key stakeholders, addressing special committees in government and countering 

misinformation from the tobacco industry and its allies.   

The Region’s Public Health Inspectors administer the smoke-free public places section of The 

Tobacco Control Act.  From January to March 2005, inspectors made 1,535 visits to 1,249 

facilities.  Twelve hundred and thirty facilities (98.5%) were compliant with the law on the first 

visit. Nineteen facilities required at least one additional visit before they, too, became compliant. 

In the same time period, Environmental Health, Population and Public Health Services, received 

112 complaints regarding smoking in public places.  All were followed up and all resulted in 

businesses complying. 

No smoking in public places has quickly become the societal norm with the compliance rate in 

the Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region now being near 100%.  
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Public Health Inspections of Restaurants, Bars, Billiard Halls, Bowling Centres, Bingo 
Establishments and Casinos, January - March 2005 
 

 # of 
Inspections  

# of 
Facilities 
Inspected 

# 
Compliant 
on Initial 

Inspection 

# Not 
Compliant 
on Initial 

Inspection 

# of 
Tickets 
Issued 

# of 
Complaints 

# of 
Complaints 
Investigated 

Jan.1 – 
Mar. 31, 2005 

1,535 1,249 1,230 19 3 112 112 

 
 
In October 2004, the Health Region revised its own tobacco use policy, which applies equally to 

the Region’s rural and urban health facilities and offices. The policy states: 

Smoking and the use of tobacco products are prohibited in all facilities and vehicles 
owned, leased and/or operated by the Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region. 

• 

• 
• 
• 

Smoking is allowed outdoors in designated smoking areas.  
Tobacco products will not be sold at RQHR facilities. 
The Region will not accept, directly or indirectly, sponsorships, gifts or donations from 
tobacco companies. 
 

The Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region continues to play a leading role in the Saskatchewan 

Coalition for Tobacco Control, a coalition of approximately 15 health organizations.  The Health 

Region joined other Coalition members in celebrating a major victory in January 2005 when the 

Supreme Court of Canada upheld Saskatchewan's tobacco display ban.  Legislation for smoke-

free workplaces is the next challenge. 

Challenges and Future Directions 

The Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region is striving to provide effective service delivery within 

available resources. We must balance the priorities of investing in services to improve health 

status while meeting immediate needs and demands for health care services.  

Status quo budgets only fund the previous level of services and allow the Region to  

maintain the current level of operations and scope of services. Service enhancements generally 

require new funding, since there are no obvious surpluses for re-allocation.  Opportunities to 

shift resources from one area to another to improve overall effectiveness are actively explored, 

but this requires planning and often involves change.   

There is growing pressure to invest in new and expanded capacity to respond to the needs and 

expectations for improved access and services. Priority needs of the Region are reflected in the 

strategic plan and involve addressing the following service and capacity challenges:  
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services to improve health status, such as public health programs directed to reduce 
chlymadia, AIDs, high-risk pregnancies, youth addictions and suicides;  

• 

• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 

• 

• 
• 
• 

services for persons with chronic conditions, including prevention and education;  
number of tertiary acute beds; and 
facilities and information technology requirements. 

 
To improve service delivery, Mental Health and Addictions Services came together under the 
same departmental structure two years ago.  Staff members continue to explore training, 
programming and service structures that integrate and enhance the programs provided to clients 
with mental health and addictions needs. 
 
In 2004-2005, the Region implemented targeted spending reductions as well as continued cost 

containment strategies.  The financial challenges to containing costs and providing service within 

available resources will continue due to the high cost of technology, new medical procedures, 

increasing drug costs and inflationary increases.  

In meeting the challenges of today and planning for the future, the Region is committed to 

providing sustainable health services by continued implementation of initiatives to move forward 

on the Strategic Directions and fulfillment of accountabilities set out by the provincial 

government.  Specific objectives to support effective service delivery within available resources 

over the next years include: 

aligning service delivery with available human and financial resources; 
developing and implementing quality improvement initiatives; 
investing in redevelopment of infrastructure and management of capital assets; 
improving information and business processes; 
developing key partnerships to support investments; 
developing consistent practices and standardization of policies and programming; 
responding to emergent population health prevention and intervention issues; 
improving workplace safety; and 
defining and implementing a long-term vision of sustainable, safe and reliable services. 

 
Strategies for managing service and financial challenges during 2005-2006 include: 

ongoing assessment of financial and service status, with organization-wide re-allocation 
of savings where appropriate;  
re-introduction of targeted temporary savings and further cost containment measures, as 
required;  
slowing growth of services and associated costs;  
rigorously scrutinizing every expense; and 
planning for future shifting of resources. 

 
Initiatives for 2005-2006 include:  
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the development and implementation of a quality improvement strategy; • 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 

continuing involvement in the intersectoral Regina and Area Drug Strategy; 
developing services for persons with cognitive disabilities; 
completing facilities planning for approved construction projects (Moosomin Integrated 
Health Facility and Centre for Mother/Baby Care in Regina); 
developing a preliminary capital infrastructure plan for long term care; and 
developing a communications plan and strategy to cascade the operational plan. 

 
Strategic Theme 2 – Positive, Innovative Work Environment 
 
Personal pride and accountability that is respectful of all relationships. 
 
Art at Work Project 
 
The Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region successfully implemented the Art at Work Project, a pilot 

program funded by the Saskatchewan Arts Board, Saskatchewan Culture and Saskatchewan 

Lotteries. The Region's Artist-in-Residence, Bonnie Chapman, was located at the Regina 

General Hospital from July 2004 until July 2005. She offered to patients, clients, staff and 

volunteers art programs that promote relaxation, personal expression and enjoyment by bringing 

art, wellness and spirit together. The program allowed people to express themselves through the 

creative process, and the success of the Art at Work program saw enrollment grow from 20 

participants in the first two months to about 140 patients and staff taking part in the following 

two months.  

Human Resources 
 
People are our passion. By putting people first we are able to achieve our mission and fulfill our 
vision through a service environment built on mutual respect, collaboration and teamwork. 
 
1. Human Resources: Sustainable Quality Service 

Human Resource customers and service providers participated in a review of the Human 

Resource Service, with a view to identify needs and perspectives toward a preferred future. 

The review prompted the development of an integrated team-based Human Resource Service 

Model with a focus on customer service, strategic partnerships, integration, accessibility and 

proactive planning and development. Subsequently, the model was endorsed by the 

organization and implementation commenced. 

Redefining business processes and enhancing the provision of timely information to support 

decision-making is key to ensuring efficiency and effectiveness. The phased-in 

Annual Report 2004-2005 53 



Initiatives, Accomplishments, Challenges and Future Directions 
implementation of the Human Resource Information System (HRIS) provides electronic 

personnel records and a centralized scheduling module that enables provision of real-time 

data and consistent standardized processes.  

Continuous improvement through regular monitoring, reporting and trend analysis is an 

essential component of the Human Resource Service, as it informs strategy development. 

As we look to our preferred future, we proactively plan the schematic to achieve our future 

success by advancing our best practices and applying knowledge gained through research. 

This year we took an important step in placing an emphasis on planning and development by 

creating a position specifically dedicated to human resource strategic planning and 

development. 

The overriding focus on recruitment and retention is vital to ensuring sustainable quality 

service. Improving workplace practices based on factors that enhance employee commitment 

and retention is essential to becoming an employer of choice. By actively monitoring 

employee/physician turnover and forecasting vacancies, we are able to target our strategies 

for optimal success. Provision of bursaries, purchased seats in training programs (in and out-

of-province) and proactive position creation aimed at recruiting locally graduating nursing 

professionals has proven successful. Annual market adjustment reviews in partnership with 

SAHO provide enhanced recruitment and retention incentives for hard-to-recruit 

classifications.  

Key Accomplishments: 
• Human Resource Service Delivery Model and guiding principles were developed to 

provide consistent and accessible Human Resource Services throughout the region. 
• Human Resource Services are integrated and aligned with strategic themes, within 

available resources. 
• The Attendance Support Program was developed and implemented and the Attendance 

Support Advisory Committee actively monitors the program.  
• Business processes were standardized to enhance decision-making. 
 
Key Initiatives: 
• Implementation of Employee Service Centres and Human Resource Service Teams. 
• Advancement of graduating nurse employment opportunities to the point that each 

Regina nursing graduate is employed full-time in the RQHR. 
• Expanding RN and LPN clinical practice and maximizing nursing scope within each                   

discipline to Full Scope of Practice. 
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• Plan for the promotional movement of current employees into vacancies created by 
retirements and turnover. Guiding current employees through career planning and 
professional development (Career Pathing) enabling them to achieve their career choices 
within RQHR also helps fill vacancies. The focus for Career Pathing is on Aboriginal 
employees at this time. 

• Business processes continue to be reviewed for effectiveness and efficiency.  
  
2. Human Resources: Positive, Innovative Environment     

The delivery of health care services depends upon the commitment of the people providing 

the services. By engaging employee opinions based on their employment experience, we are 

able to validate which policies and practices enhance employee commitment and contribute 

to a positive work environment. This year we have embarked on a plan to survey our 

employees to receive valuable feedback for future planning toward improving the workplace. 

We are strongly committed to the value of diversity in our workforce and the development of 

a Representative Workforce. This past year we surveyed all health care employees within the 

health region to determine the baseline representation within the designated groups. The 

results validated the achievements of the recruitment and retention efforts over the past year. 

The workforce is made up of 4% aboriginal employees, 5% visible minority and 3% 

disabled. We continue to focus our initiatives toward enhancing recruitment and retention of 

the underrepresented Aboriginal population. 

We are able to effectively utilize resources by monitoring, reporting and trending analysis for 

improvement in attendance, vacation liability, overtime, scheduling, employee turnover and 

workplace safety. 

 Personal and professional development is an ongoing process. Expansion of a competency-

based performance management system and monitoring tool to support individual 

development and succession planning is underway. Initiating professional development plans 

is valuable in the lifelong learning process, therefore creating an atmosphere for learning, 

providing mentoring opportunities and continuing partnerships with educational institutions 

is crucial to ensuring a learning organization. 

One of our key accomplishments is the development of the Leadership Universe, an 

interactive learning environment created for leaders, managers and supervisors to enable self- 

assessment and self-development. 
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3. Human Resources: Attendance Support Program 

The Attendance Support Program is in support of the “People Philosophy” which recognizes 

that a productive and healthy workforce is key to the delivery of outstanding health care 

services. The Attendance support program provides the process to enable employees to be at 

work, stay at work or return to work on a timely basis consistent with the employee’s 

abilities and restrictions. 

Since the implementation of the Attendance Support Program there has been a reduction in 

sick utilization as follows: 

• 1.4 hours per full-time equivalent (FTE) position in December 2004 
• 1.2 hours per FTE in January 2005 
• .5 hours per FTE in February 2005 
• .5 hours per FTE in March 2005 

 
In conjunction with a renewed emphasis on the philosophy of accommodation, a reduction in 

overall Workman Compensation Board (WCB) costs was experienced ($.59 M in the past 

year). The WCB charge to the region in the past three years (excluding annual assessment 

cost and rural sites) was: 

• 2002    $3,092,132  
• 2003    $3,268,713  
• 2004    $2,677,749 
 

Other supporting initiatives to aid in the reduction of absences include: 
 

Personal Protection and Infection Control Program 
This safety program provides employees with enhanced education and personal 

protective equipment to minimize personal risk of hazardous infections.  

 

Employee Wellness Initiatives  
Employee Wellness Initiatives are targeted to educate the workforce to better manage 

their own health (i.e., smoking cessation, weight reduction, fitness classes, stress 

management, and blood pressure monitoring). 

 

Scent Free Awareness Campaign 
The scent-free awareness campaign is an on-going effort to educate employees and 

visitors of the medical discomforts suffered by those with sensitivities to scented products 

with a view to induce participation in maintaining a quality indoor air environment. The 
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communication strategy includes the use of approved signage throughout the facility, 

messaging incorporated in pre-admission/client visitation informational packages, and 

informational letters to florists requesting limitations in the use of fragrant flowers in 

floral arrangements targeted for RQHR facilities. 

 

4. Human Resources: Premium Pay Taskforce 
In recognition of the human and financial impacts associated with the escalating cost of 

overtime and premium pay, a taskforce was established with a view to implementing 

reduction strategies utilizing an integrated approach inclusive of all the factors which 

influence the use of premium pay. 

In conjunction with the Attendance Support Program and the Centralized Scheduling 

Department, the Premium Pay Taskforce aligned regional business processes to enable 

management of premium pay provisions in a cost-effective manner. The resulting outcome 

included consistent administering of premium pay provisions; revision of work schedules to 

minimize use of premium pay, development of on-going monitoring, and implementation of 

targeted strategies for high use areas.  

As a result, the overtime statistics indicate a reduction of .42% in overtime from the previous 

year: 

 
2003-2004:  241,180 OT hours 
2004-2005:  240,179 OT hours 

 
5. Human Resources: Centralized Scheduling Service 

Implementation of Centralized Scheduling and electronic scheduling enabled standardization 

of the scheduling process, enhancement in compliance of collective agreement provisions 

and improved utilization of existing resources. In Phase One of the initiative, Centralized 

Scheduling was implemented in 39 health service units. Expansion of the scheduling service 

to other areas within the Health Region will be phased in over time.  

6. Human Resources: Representative Workforce Program 
RQHR is striving to achieve a representative workforce, one that is reflective of the diversity 

of the community. The Representative Workforce Strategy is intended to facilitate 

employment opportunities for persons of Aboriginal ancestry; people with disabilities; visible 
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minorities; and women in non-traditional roles. There are many initiatives underway in 

support of a representative workforce including: 

Increasing the Hiring of Individuals from Designated Groups 
Increase the number of applicants from designated groups through promotion of our 

Representative Workforce Program. Working in partnership with governments, unions, 

educational institutions and community groups to develop a representative workforce. 
 
Aboriginal Awareness Training 
Preparing the workforce through the provision of awareness training fosters a positive 

and supportive climate. Implementation of a four-year strategy to provide all regional 

employees with aboriginal awareness training has resulted in 3,276 employees trained in 

year two of the strategy. 
 
Aboriginal Summer Student Project 
Working in partnership with educational institutions to provide summer employment 

opportunities for students. 
 
Representative Workforce Survey 
Over 7,654 surveys were distributed to health region staff with the intent of gathering 

information from employees who self-declared to determine the baseline representation 

of designated groups within the health region.  

Aboriginal Employee Network 
With a view to provide supports within the work environment and enhance retention of 

Aboriginal employees, the development of an Aboriginal Employee Network is a positive 

step in providing the medium for a supportive networking environment that enhances 

quality work-life experiences. 

Health Careers Entrance Training Program  
The Health Careers Entrance Training Program is a 12-week program designed to train 

people of Aboriginal ancestry for entry-level positions within the RQHR. The program 

includes eight weeks of employment readiness and four weeks of work experience. The 

program is offered annually and has been running for five years with the capacity for 12 

students per year. Every student who has completed this program has been hired into the 

RQHR. 
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Career Pathing Project 
The Health Sector Partnership Steering Committee includes health employers, unions, 

training institutions, the Aboriginal community, professional associations and 

government. The purpose of the partnership is to identify, develop and implement 

strategies that address broad training and employment needs for the health sector with a 

focus on Aboriginal employment initiatives and the development of a Representative 

Workforce. 

The committee has undertaken the Health Career Pathing project to facilitate 

advancement of current and future health care workers, and promote a sustainable 

representative workforce through career pathing, utilizing a prior learning assessment 

tool. The RQHR was selected as a pilot site for this provincial initiative. 

The project incumbents will identify their health career goals and embark upon a 

developmental plan and mentorship program that enables academic and skill 

development for successful transition into their desired health care professions.  

Improving Communication at System Wide Admission and Discharge 
 
A joint project between System Wide Admission and Discharge (SWADD) and Home Care has 

improved communication and procedures, enabling the two departments to work together more 

effectively to meet the needs of Home Care clients in the region. 

Leadership Philosophy 
 
In the fall of 2004, Dwight Nelson, President and CEO, asked the RQHR’s management team for 

nominations and expressions of interest to form the Leadership Task Force, a team that would be 

responsible for establishing the Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region’s Leadership Philosophy. The 

Philosophy was to become part of the Region’s Strategic Framework, and would boldly state 

what the Region values and celebrates in its individual leaders, regardless of what position they 

may have in the organization.  

Of the more than 80 names brought forward, 13 members were selected representing a cross-

section of the Region, and many points of view. The team met throughout the fall and winter to 

participate in lively debate, thoughtful conversation, and to dream about the ideal environment to 

Annual Report 2004-2005 59 



Initiatives, Accomplishments, Challenges and Future Directions 
develop, support and strengthen leaders. Together, the Task Force created a Leadership 

Philosophy that describes what it means to be a leader in the Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region.  

Nurse Recruitment  
 
The Health Region has recruited 147 nurses during the past fiscal year. That number includes 

new graduates, foreign nurses and experienced nurses.  

The Region has also successfully implemented a strategy that offers valuable practical 

experience to nursing students who have completed three years of the four-year NEPS nursing 

program, jointly run by the Saskatchewan Institute of Applied Sciences (SIAST) and the 

University of Saskatchewan, College of Nursing. The students are hired as Senior Assistants, and 

under the supervision of a senior nurse, have the opportunity to work for the summer in the 

RQHR and use their nursing skills before returning to school. RQHR staffing professionals visit 

the nursing school to tell students in their final year about opportunities for joining the RQHR. 

This system has proved to be an excellent tool for recruiting locally-trained nurses to the Region.  

Nurse Mentoring Program  
 
This initiative of the Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region matches a newly-hired nurse with a 

senior nurse volunteering with the program and is meant to help the less experienced nurse 

develop professionally in his or her career. The mentoring nurse helps ease the transition into the 

workplace by offering advice on policies, answering questions on nursing practice and offering 

practical advice.  

Feedback from protégé and senior nurses involved in the program was positive at the three-

month mark. A one-year review is currently underway with input from nurses to determine what, 

if any, improvements need to be made. 

 
Nursing Professional Practice Council 
 
The Nursing Professional Practice Council (NPPC) provides a mechanism for nurses from across 

the Region to guide professional practice. It provides an environment in which nurses can 

participate in decision-making that affects the quality of care delivered to clients, patients, 

residents, families, and communities of the Region.  

The Successes of the Nursing Professional Practice Council include: 
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development and promotion of the NPPC area on the RQHR Intranet Web site; • 
• 

• 

• 

• 
• 
• 

• 

worked with Respiratory Therapy to change the delivery of oxygen by nasal prongs to 
eliminate the use of a humidification bottle; 
assisted with mentorship program for new nursing graduates. The mentorship program is 
funded by Saskatchewan Health; and 
organized successful Nurses’ Week celebrations with noon hour recognition of the 
extraordinary achievements of nurses and evening celebrations for nurses. 

 
The NPPC is currently working with the following practice issues: 

night cupboard concerns and drug availability after hours; 
development of region-wide practice standards;  
formulating of revised and updated practice guidelines for implementation of LPN full 
scope of practice; and 
standards regarding advance directives and code status. 

 
Physician Recruitment 
 
The Region is working towards improving communication regarding physician recruitment with 

the creation of an online physician recruitment database. This communication tool will provide 

physician leaders and Health Region leaders easy access to information on the physician 

recruitment process and on current candidates being pursued by the region. The database is 

expected to be operational by the summer of 2005. 

The Region continued to achieve physician recruitment success with the recruitment of two 

urologists, one orthopedic surgeon, one pediatric general surgeon, one otolaryngologist, two 

adult psychiatrists, one developmental pediatrician, one half-time palliative care physician, two 

emergency medicine certified emergency room physicians, a family physician for the community 

of Grenfell, and numerous family physicians for Regina. A keynote of interest is that the 

orthopedic surgeon and one of the emergency room physicians are graduates of the University of 

Saskatchewan College of Medicine. 

Physician recruitment challenges continue, particularly when trying to attract physicians in 

specialized services who have not trained in Saskatchewan nor been exposed to our organization 

and culture. The recruitment office continues efforts to attract qualified resources by promoting 

both the quality services delivered throughout our Health Region and our city, which we believe 

is a great place to call home.    
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Specialist Emergency Coverage Program 
 
The Health Region has successfully implemented the Specialist Emergency Coverage Program 

(SECP), ensuring that physicians in the specialty services are available to meet the emergency 

medical needs of patients. The Health Region has ensured continuous coverage in 28 out of 30 

specialties with minimum disruption in Tier 1 coverage. Insufficient numbers of specialists 

results in an ongoing challenge in providing coverage.  Active regional recruitment efforts 

continue in concert with annual physician resource planning in an effort to ensure sustainable 

continuous coverage in all specialty areas. Administration of the SECP program has also been 

successful and continues to run smoothly, with no complaints expressed by physicians.   

Enhancing Medical Leadership and Partnerships 
 
An internal organizational behaviour project was undertaken to determine how best to further 

engage physician leaders in the management activities and enhance the medical leadership of the 

Health Region. The project's final report offered recommendations to senior management on how 

to support physician leaders and focus their administrative efforts, in order to encourage their 

continued and greater involvement in program planning and operational decision-making. 

Transition Home Team 
 
The Health Region has created a Transition Home Team to effectively and efficiently assess and 

provide home care services to adult clients with complex needs following discharge from acute 

care. The team is made up of a SWADD co-ordinator, Registered Nurses, Home Health Aides, 

an Occupational Therapist and a scheduler. This specifically-dedicated team provides service to 

clients within hours of their hospital discharge. The Region implemented this initiative in 

January, with the Transition Home Team initially working with discharged patients and 

expanding to include patients who are leaving the emergency department and require care. 

Implementation of this strategy has resulted in a streamlined process of patient discharge as well 

as more effective use of time and resources.  

The Health Region is continuing to implement the strategy, and will evaluate and analyze the 

initiative on an ongoing basis to ensure it is effective and to determine if and where any changes 

are necessary. 
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Challenges and Future Directions 
 
RQHR priorities for 2005-2006 to ensure that we meet the objectives of Strategic Theme Two 
include: 

continuing to improve workplace safety, including expanded use of safety-engineered 
sharps; 

• 

• 

• 
• 

• 

• 

• 
• 
• 

completing of employee opinion survey and development of strategies to enhance work 
environment; 
support for the Leadership Philosophy, including support for frontline leadership;  
continuing efforts to enhance and strengthen the relationship network with the Region's 
physician group and the leadership team; and 
engaging physicians more actively in leadership and administration roles and 
responsibilities. 

 
Strategic Theme 3 – Aboriginal Health 
 
Improve health status outcomes of Aboriginal people through collaboration. 
 
Aboriginal Health  
The former Regina Health District began developing services for Aboriginal people during the 

1990s. Existing services include: 

Al Ritchie Health Action Centre offers a Baby's Best Start program for Aboriginal women, 
teens and women under stress; 
Native Counselling Services at the Regina General and Pasqua hospitals; 
programs to promote Aboriginal employment and cultural awareness among staff; and 
the Four Directions Community Health Centre located in North Central Regina, promotes 
individual, family and community health and wellness and features Aboriginal community 
development programs. While the programs are available to all area residents, the 
involvement of community Elders, residents and staff have brought a distinct Aboriginal 
character to the Four Directions Community Health Centre.  

 
The Four Directions Community Health Centre recognized a need for new culture-oriented 

community programs and subsequently created and implemented several programs. Reclaiming 

Our Lives – Creating Our Tipis is a weekly parenting program that honours Aboriginal culture 

by teaching the values associated with the poles used in building a tipi. The concept is that, if a 

home is missing any of those values, the home is weaker.  

The Focus on Fathers group continues to grow stronger. This support group for fathers with 

custody, in process of seeking custody, or who want custody of their child(ren) meets on a 

weekly basis. 
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A Breast Feeding support group was developed out of the Centre's Healthiest Babies Possible 

Program. The group meets once a month and brings together pre-natal and post-natal clients. 

Post-natal mothers offer support in child care and breast feeding and serve as role models to pre-

natal mothers. As a result of this program, many pre-natal mothers decided to breast feed their 

babies and carry on this natural tradition. 

An Addictions Recovery outreach program was initiated in which a Regina Qu'Appelle Health 

Region Addictions counsellor comes to Four Directions three times a week to hold an addictions 

recovery group session and do individual counselling. The recovery group has grown from a few 

clients to as many as ten clients taking part each week. 

The Four Directions Community Health Centre also brings the Good Food Box and the Family 

Basket to area residents. Four Directions works with Regina Education and Action on Child 

Hunger (REACH) and acts as a depot in the community, handling the receiving and distribution 

of boxes and baskets. 

In 1998, the Regina District Health Board initiated a strategic planning process to identify key 

areas where resources could be directed to achieve improvements in Aboriginal health. This 

process became known as the Aboriginal Health Initiative (AHI). 

In June 2000, the Aboriginal Health Initiative report identified priorities for service enhancement 

and a new phase of work – the Working Together Towards Excellence project – was initiated. 

With the formation of the Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region, the AHI continued and expanded 

to encompass the new Region. 

The Regina Qu’Appelle Regional Health Authority has made one of its goals the improvement of 

the health status outcomes of Aboriginal people. During 2002-2003, the Regina Qu’Appelle 

Health Region’s Working Together Towards Excellence project team, together with an external 

advisory group, conducted extensive research, including consultations with Health Region staff 

and external stakeholders. The report of the project was published in 2003 and included 

recommendations for collaborative action to improve Aboriginal health outcomes. The RQHR 

Aboriginal Health Office was established to achieve this goal. 

Internally, the office provides education, advocacy, linkages and acts as a liaison between the 

Health Region and the First Nation and Métis community. The office seeks advice and direction 

Annual Report 2004-2005 64 



Initiatives, Accomplishments, Challenges and Future Directions 
from First Nation and Métis people on the Health Region’s programs. This knowledge will 

enable the office to strengthen the Health Region's capacity to deliver programs and services that 

are culturally sensitive.  

Externally, the Aboriginal Health Office is working on a long-term goal of establishing a 

partnership consisting of 75 stakeholders, including First Nations and Métis leaders, First 

Nations- and Métis-run health organizations, government agencies, post-secondary institutions, 

school boards, justice, policing and community services. The Aboriginal Health Office acts as a 

secretariat to this partnership. Progress in establishing this partnership in 2004-2005 included 

developing the group's direction and the framework in which to operate.   

Challenges and Future Directions 
 
Building relationships and trust with the First Nations and Métis communities will continue to be 

a challenge for the Aboriginal Health Office. Historical issues of eroded trust and inequality in 

dealing with non-Aboriginal organizations are always present for First Nations and Métis 

people. Rebuilding trust and maintaining a transparent relationship between the Health Region 

and First Nations and Métis people is a crucial process that will take time. Ongoing consultations 

with the First Nations and Aboriginal communities regarding health delivery programs will help 

to strengthen this relationship and assist the Region in changing services to improve health status 

outcomes among Aboriginal people. 

The Four Directions Community Health Centre intends to establish literacy programs for parents 

and youth programs with a focus on life skills and healthy lifestyles. The Centre also plans to 

continue efforts to collaborate with RQHR and the community in the establishment of a Primary 

Health Care Centre. 

Improvements in service delivery will also focus initially on chronic diseases (diabetes), 

Women’s and Children’s Health, Mental Health and Addictions, Home Care and Primary Health 

Care development. 
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Strategic Theme 4 – Primary Health Care 

Improve health status through supporting individual and communities in responsibility for their 
own health through service redesign. 
 
The Regina Qu’Appelle Regional Health Authority has identified the expansion of Primary 

Health Care (PHC) as a priority by making it a Strategic Theme in the Regional Operating Plan. 

Our short-term objective is to develop and implement a primary health care plan, with a goal that 

by 2012 everyone in the Region will have access to a Primary Health Care team. The 

development of Primary Health Care Services is being carried out in close partnership with 

Saskatchewan Health, and in accordance with the RQHR’s five-phased Primary Health Care 

Strategic Plan.  

Our work in the last year focussed on selecting communities in which to begin establishing 

Primary Health Care Services. Two communities - North Central Regina and the towns of 

Broadview, Grenfell, Whitewood and Wolseley, and the First Nations Communities of 

Cowessess, Kahkewistahaw, Ochapowace and Sakimay – have been selected as initial sites. 

Activity in 2004-2005 continued in the communities with Community Consultation Committees 

comprised of community members, human service providers and RQHR internal stakeholders. 

Detailed local plans that answer five key questions are being developed. The questions are: 

Where do we want to be? (i.e., our vision, future state, outcomes, goals) • 
• 
• 
• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

How will we know when we get there? (i.e., our measures of success) 
Where are we now? (i.e., current state, including strengths, issues, problems) 
How do we get there? (i.e., strategies for action to close the gap between the current 
state and desired future state) 
Ongoing: How will the current and future environment influence us in reaching our 
future state? 

Other major accomplishments included: 

development of a PHC business planning framework to ensure a common 
standardized approach to the detailed planning occurring across the Region;    
expansion of the Primary Health Care Initiatives team with the addition of two PHC 
Development Consultants; 
appointment of a Regional Diabetes Manager to revise and implement the RQHR 
diabetes plan in the context of Primary Health, Aboriginal Health and the Prevention 
and Management Model for Chronic Disease; and    
receipt of formal expressions of interest in PHC from five Regina family physician 
practices. 
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HealthLine 
 
HealthLine, a province-wide, twenty-four hour confidential telephone advice service was 

successfully launched in 2003.  During the first 10 months of operation the call center responded 

to approximately 60,000 inquiries. During the period 2004-2005 fiscal year 73,174 inquiries 

were handled. 

A Registered Nurse assesses each call received at HealthLine and depending on the presenting 

symptoms the caller may be referred or linked directly to agencies such as the Saskatchewan 

Drug Line, Poison Center, Mobile Crisis, etc.  The following chart indicates the distribution of 

the callers throughout the province in 2004-2005: 
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HealthLine continues to develop its provincial service through consultations with other healt

regions and key stakeholders.  Recently, HealthLine was asked to assist the Department of 

Health with the new initiative regarding addictions.  Through a collaborative effort with key 

stakeholders this service was introduced to enhance existing services at HealthLine.  

Challenges and Future Directions 
 

uring the next year activity will focus on: D

• development, approval and implementation of the Broadview Area and North Cen
Regina PHC plans; 

• implementation of th
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• enhancing RQHR’s response to the Prevention and Management Model for Chronic 
Disease; and 

• development of a strategy for seniors. 
 

Primary Health Care will be developed with participation from other services and programs 

within the Region to ensure that PHC will be as comprehensive as possible. For example, Men

Health and Addictions Services is looking forward to participating in the Primary Health Care 

initiative development to ens

tal 

ure  that mental health and addictions services are planned and 

delivered in the Primary Health Care sites being developed. 

trategic Theme 5 – Specialized Services 

The All Nations’ Healing Hospital opened in June 2004 and replaces the former Fort Qu’Appelle 

 

health services, a shared vision centre that provides mental 

 Regina Qu’Appelle 

ority. 

 less 

wer incidents of bed closure relating to staff shortage. Patient volumes were kept 

 

cipating in a national study on nurse turnover and its effects, not 

only eco lly, but also on st e, patients and the egion. 

S
 
Strengthen RQHR as a provincial resource and referral centre through the determination of 
services best delivered in Saskatchewan and in western Canada. 
 
All Nations Healing Hospital 
 

Indian Hospital originally built nearly 70 years ago. The new hospital has 13 acute care beds, one

palliative care bed, a large outpatient and diagnostic area and support services. The facility is 

also a location for First Nations 

health services, and a spiritual cultural program. The new facility is located on First Nations’ 

land and operates as an independent non-profit corporation affiliated with the

Regional Health Auth

Consolidation of Acute Care Units 
 
The Health Region consolidated acute care units in the Regina hospitals to align available human 

resources with the number of open beds. The results are better organized and managed staff,

overtime and fe

consistent with previous years. 

Nursing shortages are a problem experienced not only by the RQHR, but nationally. The Health

Region will continue its strategy to recruit nurses, which will, in turn, allow the Region to open 

more beds.  

The Health Region is also parti

nomica aff moral Health R

Annual Report 2004-2005 68 



Initiatives, Accomplishments, Challenges and Future Directions 
Diagnostic Imaging 

04-2005, Diagnostic I g Serv IS) perf al Magnetic 

nce Imaging (MRI) s, decreasing the wait list by over 30%. A second MRI has been 

d, and construction ts installation at the R  General H l will begin in 

05. 

lso seen an increa Computerized Tomography (CT)  studies. Much of this is due to 

reases in the use of C dy for achine 

2003-04  2004-05  

 
In 20 magin ices (D ormed over 1,100 addition

Resona exam

purchase  for i egina ospita

summer 20

DIS has a se of 

the inc T stu a variety of diagnoses. The purchase of a new m

with the latest technology will enable the Health Region to complete the imaging process faster 

and expand the range of analysis provided.  

CT Visits and Examinations 
 

Month Visits Exams Visits Exams 
April  2034 3362 2044 3429 
May  2170 3616 2139 3610 
June  3637 2238 3888   2139
Jul   2133 y 3714 2199 3885 
Au ust  2047 3501 2143 3768 g
September  2152 3710 2120 3650 
October  2235 3856 2185 3725 
Nov 3337 2116 3611 ember  1959 
December  2042 3521 1834 3236 
Janu 2031 3546 2043 3688 ary  
Febr 1968 3349 1964 3526 uary  
March 2043 3253 2104 3669 
 
It has not been necessary to increase our hours of service at this time.  Our current practice is to 

staff CT from 0700 - 2300 hours and then have staff on-call from 2300 - 0700 hours.  During 

these hours, we have so far been able to keep our non-urgent waiting list to a maximum

weeks.  

The approximately 10% increase in CT studies includes:  

• increased renal artery stenosis studies (the study of the arterial flow to the kidney to check 
narrowin

 of four 

for 
g of the arteries); 

• increase in brain aneurysm studies; 
neurysm studies.  With newer CT technology, diagnosis of 

aneurysms in their early stages allows for consistent follow up and intervention before life 
thre situations arise; a

• ed blood supply to the brain - which can help 
prevent strokes). 

• increase in abdominal aorta a

atening nd  
 Carotid artery studies (helps check for decreas

to 
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The Region has recently pu ed a 64-slice CT machine, which will further increase our 

ty to do the studies l  above and expand into diac and c

ysis.  This techno  will also allow us to produce images that are .625 millimeters 

g our clients the possible nostic cap ities in all 

gy will also enable  image t ntire body in about 15 sec e 

critical situation such as a motor vehicle accid r other ser injury. Regina will be 

 new 64-slice 

rchas

capabili isted  car olon studies and full body 

vessel anal logy

thick, givin best  diag abil areas.  This new 

technolo us to he e onds saving precious tim

during a ent o ious 

the first centre in the province, and one of the first in the country, to acquire this

technology. 

MRI Visits and Examinations 
 

2003-04  2004-05  Month Visits Exams Visits Exams 
Ap l  314 370 274 295 ri
M   333 387 264 304 ay
Jun   310 361 315 374 e
Jul   336 394 357 390 y
August  201 253 384 430 
September  269 307 350 402 
October 263 311 414 457 
November  237 274 460 495 
December  228 274 302 333 
January  265 297 423 461 
February  285 341 431 479 
March 257 303 459 537 
 
Achievements and successes for the MRI area for the year 2004-2005 include: 

• over 1,100 additional exams were carried out, bringing the wait list down by 30%; 
• service has been expanded to include Workman Compensation Board claimants; 
• evening hours have been expanded and weekend hours have been added; 
• contrast injection case hours have been expanded to include three nights each week; 
• two additional staff members have been hired for the MRI area; 
• currently, there are two students enrolled in this year’s MRI program and an additional three

students enrolled in the program for the 2005-2006 year; and 
• a second MRI unit has been purchased for Southern Saskatchewan and construction for its 

installation will begin in the summer of 2005 at the Regina General Hospital. 
 
Full Capacity Protocol 
 
The Health Region has implemented several strategies to optimize the flow of patients through 

the acute care hospitals, including the Full Capacity Protocol. 

 

Overcrowding in emergency rooms is a problem in hospitals across North America, and RQHR 

is no exception. To address the issue, the Health Region implemented the Full Capacity Protocol 
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in January 2005. The Full Capacity Protocol is a systematic process to facilitate the mo

a particular group of patients from the Emergency Department. These are patients who have an 

vement of 

re no regular, on-service beds on inpatient units. 

quired 

e opened 

alth Region is currently evaluating the process, and will review the impact and 

ffectiveness of the Full Capacity Protocol to determine if changes to the strategy are required. 

eographic Protection and Bed Borrowing 

ber of 

 

 

mplantable Cardioverter Defibrillator (ICD) program that will provide 

 The ICD is a device implanted in a patient’s chest, 

nd used to diagnose, treat and cure cardiac arrhythmias. A cardiac arrhythmia occurs when the 

order-to-admit-to-hospital but for whom there a

Under the Full Capacity Protocol, these patients will be admitted to alternate beds on inpatient 

units within the facility for a temporary period (no more then 48 hours) until beds in the re

service areas become available. The Health Region has designated two beds in the Pasqua 

Hospital and five beds in the Regina General Hospital that are otherwise closed to b

during Full Capacity Protocol. The strategy improves the flow of admitted patients through 

emergency by transferring them to units where they will receive care, thus allowing emergency 

department staff to continue working effectively and efficiently.  

The He

e

G

The Region's geographic protection and bed borrowing strategy ensures that a specific num

beds are allocated to the various services in hospitals. Department and Section Heads are 

responsible for managing beds efficiently and effectively based on demands for service. Bed 

borrowing is arranged between department heads and is based on bed availability.  

This strategy was implemented in April 2004, and has recently been reviewed.  An adjustment to

the bed allocation is forthcoming. The allocation of beds is an ongoing collaborative process and

will be reviewed regularly, at least on an annual basis, to determine what adjustments need to be 

made. 

 
Implantable Cardioverter Defibrillator 
 
The Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region expanded Cardiac Services at the Regina General 

Hospital to include a new I

patients with a better level of cardiac care. 

a

heart beats too fast. Cardiac arrhythmias are a common cause of death and disability in Canada. 

Previously, Health Region patients were sent out of province for this life-saving treatment. It is 

expected that approximately 36 people in Saskatchewan per year will benefit from this program. 
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The initiative supports the Action Plan for Saskatchewan Health Care goal of improving acce

to health services for Saskatchewan people through provincial planning and co-ordination of 

ss 

s more efficient use of the Region's hospital and surgical resources. The ICD 

rogram is expected to cost up to $900,000 annually, which will be redirected from existing out-

nit in 

t the 

ing space was redesigned and renovated to meet the 

 

 

he 

nd babies can face during pregnancy and delivery. 

ssures and, yet, make every effort to eliminate the possibility of 

can be applied to systems 

ducing risk to mothers and newborns. 

 

zed 

as labour, progress of labour, vaginal delivery 

complications and post-partum hemorrhage.  

allenge of taking the newly-acquired knowledge and applying it to 

make it the norm for care.  

services. It support

p

of-province expenditures. 

Mental Health and Addictions Services 
 
Mental Health and Addictions Services began development of the Adolescent Psychiatric U

the Regina General Hospital, transforming it from a medical/surgical unit which often served 

youth with psychiatric diagnoses, to a designated mental health facility for adolescents. The 

Health Region began implementing a psychiatric treatment program model designed to mee

specific needs of adolescents.   The exist

needs of the new program functions. The Adolescent Unit is the first of its kind in Saskatchewan.

MORE Program 
 
The Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region is the first health region in western Canada to take part in

an innovative medical pilot program called Managing Obstetrical Risk Efficiently (MORE). T

program aims to reduce risks which mothers a

The MORE program was developed by the Society of Obstetricians and Gynecologists of 

Canada and is based on risk management techniques developed by organizations which function 

under considerable time pre

catastrophic failures. The strategies they use to keep people safe 

re

The MORE program emphasizes medical professionals working and learning together as a team

to reduce system errors and provide the best care possible for mother and baby through 

pregnancy and delivery. Through the program, health professionals have access to standardi

information and best practices on topics such 

RQHR health providers are in the second year of the three-year MORE program. Moving into 

the next phase presents the ch
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Service Delivery Plan with Southern Saskatchewan Regions 
 
The South Saskatchewan Region Forum was established in late 2003 with the vision of 

“effective, appropriate and integrated health service delivery across southern Saskatchewan.”  

ship from Cypress Health 

Reg u’Appelle Health Region, Sun Country Health 

Region

During 2004, several m scussion common challenges and to create a 

collabo rvices and practices amongst the five 

Regions.  

Five str tiatives for 

2005-2006 were identified and collaborative working groups from all five regions were formed 

to addr

he

• Coo
oal: Improve the delivery and access of specialized services for the people of southern 

 integrated services. 
 

oal: Improve utilization and availability of Health Human Resources.  

• Medica
dical 

lead
 
• Eme g

The Forum nges and to follow-up on the 

progres f

The forum was comprised of the medical and administrative leader

ion, Five Hills Health Region, Regina Q

, and Sunrise Health Region.     

eetings were held to di

rative five-year plan for the integration of health se

ategic themes and supporting goals were established. Specific priority ini

ess the issues.  

T  themes and goals of the South Saskatchewan Forum include: 

rdination of Specialized Services 
G
Saskatchewan. 
 

• Optimal Service and Patient Flow 
Goal: Effective, seamless and

• Human Resource Planning and Management 
G
 

l Leadership 
Goal: Effective, trained, informed medical leaders.  Effective, stable, sustainable me

ership. 

r ency Preparedness: Communicable Diseases 
Goal: Effective coordination of plans amongst the five Regions. 
 

 continues to meet quarterly to discuss common challe

s o  the working group initiatives.   

Challenges and Future Directions 
 
To meet the objective under Strategic Theme Five the priorities for the 2005-2006 fiscal year 
nclude: i
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• developing and implementing a plan to improve access to, and effectiveness of 

earch 
 

tes and applies knowledge. 

en 

ts to share these modules in principle with 

ther departments throughout the region. This phase also supports the Health Region's Strategic 

Theme of Creating a Positive, Innovative Work Environment. 

Associate Dean of Regina-Based Programs – College of Medicine 
 
The Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region, in conjunction with the University of Saskatchewan 

College of Medicine, appointed an Associate Dean of Regina-Based Programs. The Associate 

Dean is responsible for planning, implementing and evaluating all Regina-based educational 

programs for the University of Saskatchewan College of Medicine, including undergraduate, 

postgraduate and continuing professional learning. The Region is anticipating that the increased 

involvement with the College of Medicine will create an increased awareness for new graduates 

of the medical opportunities available within RQHR. 

 

surgical, diagnostic imaging (MRI, CT) and emergency room services; 
• acquiring and installing diagnostic imaging equipment (second MRI and Renal 

Clinic); 
• managing growth in demand for Renal Program Services through use of home 

dialysis and the Renal Clinic; 
• developing a plan and process to integrate and share services with the Saskatoon 

Health Region; 
• implementing a Radiology Information System; and 
• replacement of the Laboratory Information System. 

 
Strategic Theme 6 – Knowledge, Teaching and Res

Grow as an academic health services organization that supports, crea
 
System Wide Admission and Discharge Case Management 
 
Case Management is one of the core functions of the System Wide Admission and Discharge 

Department (SWADD). Practice standards and guidelines have been clearly defined and the 

skills, competencies and knowledge needed by staff members to perform this function have be

identified. The next step is to develop modules for training and professional development to 

support the standards. These modules will support the orientation of new staff and skill 

enhancement for existing staff. The potential also exis

o
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Continuity of Care Research 
 
System Wide Admission and Discharge Department; Family Medicine, Home Care and 

Palliative Care; Restorative and Continuing Care; and Specialty Care are collaborating with the 

University of Regina on a Continuity of Care Research Project. The study will develop a 

framework that has the potential to improve accountability, continuity and quality of care in a 

variety of health care settings such as acute care, convalescent care, home care, urban and rural 

settings.  

The Clinical Pastoral Education Program in Palliative and Hospice Care 
 
Spiritual Care Services at the Pasqua Hospital took part in developing a Clinical Pastoral 

Education (CPE) program for the Health Region that specializes in palliative and hospice care. It 

is the first CPE program of its kind in Canada, and includes the development of a core 

curriculum specifically designed for spiritual care providers serving clients in palliative and 

hospice care.  

Extended Clinical Pastoral Education Program 
 
Spiritual Care Services developed an extended Clinical Pastoral Education Program which meets 

the needs of religious leaders providing service within the RQHR. The program is customarily 

offered over a 12-week period and, because of its intensity, requires people to be free of outside 

obligations. The extended program was offered at the Regina General Hospital on Fridays and 

Saturdays over a six month period, enabling people throughout the Region to complete the 

program while maintaining their full-time or part-time jobs. Participants were also able to 

complete the clinical component according to their own schedules. The 12-week intensive course 

was also offered and held at the Regina General and Pasqua hospitals. 

Electronic Health Record 
In building towards an electronic health record, the RQHR has been actively involved in projects 

aimed at creating a Saskatchewan Client Index, Provider Registry, Electronic Medical Imaging 

System, Radiology Information Management System, and Pharmacy Information Program.  As 

well, RQHR has been actively participating in the Primary Health Care Initiative.   
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Challenges and Future Directions 
 
To meet the objective under Strategic Theme Six the priorities for the 2005-2006 fiscal year 
include: 

continuing development of information systems to support an electronic health 
record; 

• 

• 
• 
• 

• 
• 

• 

• 

• 

continuing development of information management tools and processes; 
developing a reputation management plan; 
completing consultation to develop a multi-year research priority framework and 
partnership strategy;  
initiating a joint RHQR SUN research project on a nursing staffing model; and 
updating affiliation agreements with universities and institutes. 

 
Strategic Theme 7 – Client and Public Confidence 
 
Knowledge and trust that health services are appropriate and meet individual and community 
needs. 
 
ACE Award for Visual Identity Program 
 
The Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region's visual identity program, Welcome to the Regina 

Qu’Appelle Health Region: A Tale of Transition, Amalgamation and Change, was honoured with 

an Award of Merit at Saskatchewan’s Awards for Communications Excellence (ACE). Awards 

are given to entries that demonstrate the highest standards of communications excellence. ACE is 

an industry-wide awards program administered by the International Association of Business 

Communicators, the Canadian Public Relations Society and the Advertising Association of 

Saskatchewan.  

Reputation Management 
 
Under the sponsorship of the Chief Executive Officer and led by the Public Affairs Department, 

work continued in 2004-2005 to support the development of a reputation management process 

for the Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region.  Amongst the best practice principles for such a 

process are: 

Ultimate responsibility for the success of reputation management lies with the most 
senior management team within an organization. 
Reputation management needs to be driven by and support the strategic direction of 
the organization. 
Reputation management should have a strong focus on the relationships the 
organization has with key stakeholders/audiences. 
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Employee engagement in forming and maintaining positive organizational reputation 
is key. 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Managing reputation requires that specific reputation goals be formulated at the 
outset, that these goals be agreed to at the highest levels of the organization, and that 
they be broadly supported throughout the organization. 
An organization’s actual success in meeting its business performance objectives, 
including quality service, is the bedrock on which its reputation is built. 
The results of any reputation management plan or process must be measurable, and 
the metrics must include business performance measures as well as measures of 
perception. 

 
In 2005-2006, the Senior Management Team of the Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region will 

continue to work with others, both within and outside the organization, to establish reputation 

management processes and plans to enable the Region to better meet public and other 

stakeholder expectations. 

Client Concerns 
 
The number of client concerns rose to 1,089 in 2004-2005. This increase, 11% over the last fiscal 

year, is far lower than the increase in the previous year, which was 51%. The 2003-2004 increase 

was thought to be due to higher public awareness and the lower increase this year bears that out.  

Eighty-four per cent of concerns were resolved in 3.65 days with an average turnaround time of 

8.35 days. The percentage of complex cases that took over 30 days to resolve remained the same 

as in the previous year, 9%. 

Most concerns received (42%) continue to be in relation to Acute Care Services - 42%, which is 

a decrease of 2% from last year. 

As in the previous year, access to service is the primary type of concern (39%) expressed by 

clients for the past year. Waiting time for surgery and assessments were the two major issues 

under access to service. Concerns about waiting time for surgery fell by 12% to 35% and waiting 

time for assessment concerns rose by 12% to 27%.  

Care delivery concerns regarding deportment, which rose 15% last year, fell by 9% this year.  

Mental Health and Addictions Services  
 
Mental Health and Addictions Services collaborated on a project with Catholic Family Services 

to offer a community resource group for clients experiencing anxiety and depression. This 
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initiative was nominated for a SAHO Award for innovative programming, and won a Green 

Ribbon – the highest award offered. 

In March 2005 Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region Mental Health and Addictions Services hosted 

the annual provincial clinical conference. It was the largest conference ever held, and rated as 

highly successful by attendees.  

Protecting Privacy 
 
The Regina Qu'Appelle Health Region has always protected the privacy of health information. 

Last year the Region appointed a Privacy Officer and established a Privacy Steering Committee 

with sub-committees. The Committee is reviewing and updating policies, procedures and 

systems to meet our obligations under the Health Information Protection Act (HIPA). The new 

policies are building on the policies and systems currently being used in the Region. 

The new policies and procedures will be completed in the fall of 2005. 

Challenges and Future Directions 
 
To meet the objective under Strategic Theme Seven, the priorities for the 2005-2006 fiscal year 

include: 

establishing processes and plans to enable the Region to better meet public and 
stakeholder expectations; 

• 

• 
• 

completing new policies and procedures on privacy; and  
continuing development of a reputation management plan. 
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Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2005 
 
REGINA QU’APPELLE HEALTH REGION 
REPORT OF MANAGEMENT 
 
The accompanying financial statements are the responsibility of management and have been 

approved in principle by the Authority. The financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and the Financial Reporting 

Guidelines issued by Saskatchewan Health, and of necessity include some amounts that are 

based on estimates and judgements. The financial information presented in the Management’s 

Discussion and Analysis and elsewhere in this report is consistent with that in the financial 

statements. 

Management maintains appropriate systems of internal control, including policies and 

procedures which provide reasonable assurance that the Region’s assets are safeguarded and that 

financial records are relevant and reliable. 

The Authority members carry out their responsibility for the financial statements through the 

Resource Accountability Committee. This Committee meets with management to discuss and 

review financial matters. The Provincial Auditor has full and open access to the Resource 

Accountability Committee. 

The Provincial Auditor conducts an independent audit of the financial statements. His 

examination is conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards 

and includes tests and other procedures which allows him to report on the fairness of the 

financial statements. 

 
 

 
 

  
 
Dwight Nelson     Carol Klassen 
President and CEO     Vice President Corporate Services and 
       Chief Financial Office 
 
 May 27, 2005
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AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
To the Members of the Legislative Assembly of Saskatchewan 
 
I have audited the statement of financial position of the Regina Qu’Appelle Regional Health 
Authority as at March 31, 2005 and the statements of operations and changes in fund balances, 
and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Authority’s management.  My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on my audit. 
 
I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that I plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
 
In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Authority as at March 31, 2005 and the results of its operations and its cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
 
 

 
Regina, Saskatchewan Fred Wendel, CMA, CA 
May 27, 2005               Provincial Auditor 
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         Statement 1 
REGINA QU'APPELLE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
As at March 31 

          
          
   Restricted Funds     
 Operating  Capital  Community  Total  Total 
 Fund  Fund  Trust Fund  2005   2004 
         (Note 17) 
ASSETS          
          
CURRENT ASSETS          

Cash & short-term investments (Schedule 2) $           111,435  $      18,074,031  $    1,774,428  $      19,959,894  $         4,522,271 
Accounts receivable          

Saskatchewan Health - General Revenue Fund  2,591,592  232,769  -         2,824,361  9,371,445 
Other 8,286,775  84,469  163,096         8,534,340   9,802,361 
Due to/from other funds 2,800,062  (2,584,503)  (215,559)   -  -  

Inventory (Note 2(e))  3,520,310   -  -  3,520,310  4,271,392 
Prepaid expenses 3,897,984   -  -  3,897,984  3,340,041 

 21,208,158  15,806,766  1,721,965  38,736,889  31,307,510 
          
Investments (Notes 2(f) & 15(c) & Schedule 2) 328,987  -  1,224,648  1,553,635  3,002,885 
Due from local governments (Note 5) -  256,789  -  256,789  324,846 
Capital assets (Notes 2(d) and 3) -  277,063,338  -  277,063,338  287,442,106 

TOTAL ASSETS $      21,537,145  $    293,126,893  $    2,946,613  $    317,610,651  $     322,077,347 

             
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE          
          
CURRENT LIABILITIES          

Bank overdraft (Note 15(d)) $        5,028,851  $                       -  $                   -  $        5,028,851  $       23,272,663 
Accounts payable           

Other 25,722,412  2,301,000  -  28,023,412  19,412,679 
Workers' Compensation Board (Note 14) -  -  -  -  8,827,825 

Accrued salaries 13,880,787  -  -  13,880,787  15,533,638 
Long-term debt & mortgages - current (Note 5) -   636,733  -  636,733  636,460 
Deferred revenue (Note 6) 5,955,270  -  -  5,955,270  4,236,759 
Accrued vacation pay 26,571,658  -  -  26,571,658  25,570,517 

 77,158,978  2,937,733  -  80,096,711  97,490,541 
          
Long-term debt & mortgages (Note 5) -  7,084,495  -  7,084,495  7,731,080 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 77,158,978  10,022,228  -  87,181,206  105,221,621 
          
FUND BALANCES            

Invested in capital assets -  269,342,110  -  269,342,110  279,074,566 
Externally restricted (Note 2(b)iii & Schedule 3) -   315,495  2,946,613  3,262,108  5,531,956 
Internally restricted (Note 16 & Schedule 4) -  497,364  -  497,364  452,352 
Unrestricted (55,621,833)  12,949,696  -   (42,672,137)   (68,203,148) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES (55,621,833)  283,104,665  2,946,613  230,429,445  216,855,726 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES $      21,537,145  $    293,126,893  $    2,946,613  $    317,610,651  $     322,077,347 
(See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements) 
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             Statement 2 

REGINA QU'APPELLE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

For the year ended March 31 
              
              
 Operating Fund  Restricted Funds 

 Budget      Capital  
Community 

Trust  Total  Total 

 2005  2005  2004  2005  2005  2005  2004 

 (Note 12)    (Note 17)        (Note 17) 

REVENUES              

Saskatchewan Health - General Revenue $   492,994,508   $     493,632,879   $  462,251,882   $    20,702,138   $                   -   $     20,702,138    $      6,620,870  

Other Provincial Revenue 4,320,076   4,301,794   4,377,557   275,798    -   275,798   154,326  

Federal Government Revenue 4,820,170   5,160,300   5,121,437    -   -   -   1,400,814  

Funding From Other Provinces  -    -    -    -    -    -    -  

Special Funded Programs 3,664,939   4,126,638   3,562,515    -    -    -    -  

Patient Fees 14,768,736   14,814,172   14,351,966    -    -    -    -  

Out of Province Revenue 3,980,700   3,837,057   3,956,875    -   -   -   -  

Out of Country Revenue 269,006   447,130   262,316    -    -    -    -  

Donations  -   261,964   263,273   2,565,177   97,693  2,662,870   3,071,706  

Investment Revenue 94,300   142,092   269,815   2,050   115,898  117,948   230,332  

Ancillary Revenue 3,509,974   3,566,260   3,539,366    -    -    -    -  

Recoveries 6,166,877   6,788,004   5,698,772    -    -    -    -  

Other Revenue 4,167,485   5,067,137   4,536,147   118,875    -   118,875   240,636  

 538,756,771   542,145,427   508,191,921   23,664,038   213,591    23,877,629   11,718,684  

              
EXPENSES              

Province Wide Acute Care Services 39,175,622  40,573,107  37,379,141  1,470,959   -   1,470,959  1,818,061  

Acute Care Services 259,034,176   262,362,547   250,642,801   12,256,286   20,461   12,276,747   10,667,828  

Physician Compensation Acute 37,976,303   37,717,513   35,858,844    -    -    -    -  

Supportive Care Services 92,268,343   93,276,721   88,271,802   717,496   27,644   745,140   1,391,657  

Home Based Service - Supportive Care 15,647,661   15,336,939   14,929,561   42,173   757   42,930   17,339  

Population Health Services 13,863,857   13,429,588   12,696,088   76,676    -   76,676   125,203  

Community Care Services 16,827,933   16,208,670   15,463,732    -    -    -    -  

Home Based Services - Acute & Palliative  5,732,054   5,546,445   5,430,045    -    -    -    -  

Primary Health Care Services 6,698,869   6,387,182   6,209,988   575,525    -   575,525   28,050  

Emergency Response Services - RHA 8,734,756   8,145,967   8,180,727   164,656    -   164,656   202,175  

Mental Health Services - Inpatient 7,959,389   8,053,209   6,224,449    -    -    -    -  

Addictions Services - Residential  -    -    -    -    -    -    -  

Physician Compensation Community 3,807,459   3,240,069   2,894,442    -    -    -    -  

Program Support Services 26,486,608   25,798,223   23,616,294   2,936,028    -   2,936,028   3,307,230  

Special Funded Programs 3,568,646   3,863,821   3,288,300    -    -    -   153,936  

Ancillary 975,095   761,341   908,125   114,771    -   114,771   125,445  

Total Expenses (Schedule 1) 538,756,771   540,701,342   511,994,339   18,354,570   48,862   18,403,432   17,836,924  

              
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses 
before the following items  $                     -   1,444,085   (3,802,418)  5,309,468   164,729   5,474,197   (6,118,240) 
Workers' Compensation Board termination of 
Joint Operating Agreement (Note 14)   -   -   8,827,828   -   8,827,828   -  
Transfer of Moosomin Community Trust Fund 
to Moosomin & District Health Care 
Foundation    -    -    -   (2,172,391)  (2,172,391)   -  

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses   1,444,085   (3,802,418)  14,137,296   (2,007,662)  12,129,634   (6,118,240) 

Fund balances, beginning of year   (56,980,198)  (53,485,843)  268,671,384   5,164,540   273,835,924   280,262,227  

Interfund transfers (Note 16)   (85,720)  308,063   295,985   (210,265)  85,720   (308,063) 

Fund balances, end of year    $    (55,621,833)   $ (56,980,198)   $ 283,104,665    $   2,946,613   $   286,051,278    $  273,835,924  

(See accompanying notes to the Financial Statement) 
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         Statement 3 

REGINA QU'APPELLE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
For the year ended March 31 

            
 Operating Fund  Restricted Fund 
       Community  Total  Total 
 2005   2004   Capital  Trust  2005  2004 
   (Note 17)        (Note 17) 

Cash provided by (used in): Operating Activities  Financing and Investing Activities 
            

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over expenses  $   1,444,086    $  (3,802,418)   $ 14,137,296   $ (2,007,662)   $ 12,129,634   $  (6,118,240) 

Net change in non-cash working capital (Note 7) 15,603,057   (8,408,796)  (6,612,115)  (132,990)  (6,745,105)  9,461,974 

Amortization of capital assets  -    -  17,837,098   -   17,837,098  17,264,391 

Gain/(loss) on disposal of capital assets  -    -   -   -    -   - 

 17,047,143   (12,211,214)  25,362,279  (2,140,652)  23,221,627  20,608,125 

            

Purchase of capital assets            

Buildings/construction  -    -  (666,085)   -   (666,085)  (1,741,600) 

Equipment  -    -  (6,792,245)   -   (6,792,245)  (9,484,123) 

Proceeds on disposal of capital assets            

Buildings/construction  -    -   -   -    -   - 

Equipment  -    -   -   -    -  122,111 

Disposal (Purchase) of long-term investments 770,898   332,578  68,057  678,352   746,409  77,229 

 770,898   332,578  (7,390,273)  678,352   
  

(6,711,921)  
  

(11,026,383) 

            

Repayment of debt  -    -  (646,312)   -   (646,312)  (9,391,532) 

            

Net increase (decrease) in cash & short-term 
investments during the year 17,818,041   (11,878,636)  17,325,694  (1,462,300)  15,863,394  190,210 

Cash & short-term investments, beginning of 
year (22,649,737)  (11,079,164)  452,352  3,446,993   3,899,345  4,017,198 

Interfund transfers (Note 16) (85,720)  308,063  295,985  (210,265)  85,720  (308,063) 

Cash & short-term investments, end of year  $ (4,917,416)   $(22,649,737)   $ 18,074,031   $   1,774,428    $ 19,848,459   $   3,899,345 

             

Cash and cash equivalents             

     Cash and short-term investments  $      111,435    $       622,926   $18,074,031   $   1,774,428    $ 19,848,459   $   3,899,345 

     Bank overdraft (5,028,851)  (23,272,663)   -   -    -   - 

  $ (4,917,416)   $(22,649,737)   $18,074,031   $   1,774,428    $ 19,848,459   $   3,899,345 

            
(See accompanying notes to the Financial Statement)
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REGINA QU’APPELLE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
March 31, 2005 
 
1. Legislative Authority 
 

On August 1, 2002 the Legislative Assembly passed The Regional Health Services Act (the Act).  
This Act created the Regional Health Authorities for the purpose of governing the delivery of 
health services as well as establishing and governing Health Regions in the province of 
Saskatchewan.  
 
On coming into force, the Act terminated the membership of the individual District Health 
Boards.  All assets, liabilities, rights, and obligations of the District Health Boards continue as the 
assets, liabilities, rights and obligations of the Regional Health Authority.  All contracts with the 
District Health Boards remain in effect until repealed or replaced by the Regional Health 
Authority. 
 
The Regina Qu’Appelle Regional Health Authority (RHA) was created by the Act.  The Regina 
Qu’Appelle Regional Health Authority is responsible for the planning, organization, delivery, and 
evaluation of health services it is to provide (The Act sec 27) within the geographic area known 
as Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region.   

 
2. Significant Accounting Policies 
 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 
accounting principles and include the following significant accounting policies. 

 
a) Health Care Organizations 

 
i) The RHA has agreements with and grants funding to the following CBO’s and 

third parties to provide health services: 
 

615672 Sask Ltd. (Touchwood EMS) 
Autism Resource Centre Inc. 
Backlin’s Ambulance Service Ltd. 
City of Regina Transit Department 
Cosmopolitan Activity Centre 
Cupar Lions Volunteer Ambulance 
Extendicare (Canada) Inc. 
Imperial & District Ambulance 
JT Ambulance Service Ltd. 
Living Sky Ambulance 
Lumsden & Craven Seniors’ Program Inc. 
Mental Health Association / Regina Branch Inc. 
Milestone Assisted Living Advisory Board 
Mobile Crisis Services, Inc.  
Phoenix Residential Society Inc. 
Planned Parenthood Regina 
Prairie Ambulance Care (1998) Ltd. 
Rainbow Youth Centre Inc. 
Raymore Community Health and Social Centre 
Red Cross 
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Regina Recovery Homes Inc. 
Salvation Army Waterston Centre 
Soo Line Ambulance 
University of Regina 
Valley Ambulance Care Ltd.  

  
ii) The following affiliates are incorporated as follows (and are registered charities 

under The Income Tax Act) 
 

All Nations’ Healing Hospital Inc. 
Cupar and District Nursing Home Inc. 
Lumsden & District Heritage Home Inc.  
Pioneer Village Special Care Corporation  
The Qu’Appelle Diocesan Housing Company 
The Regina Lutheran Housing Corporation 
The Salvation Army William Booth Special Care Home  
Santa Maria Senior Citizens Home Inc. 
 

The RHA provides annual grant funding to these organizations for the delivery of 
health care services.  Consequently, the RHA has disclosed certain financial 
information regarding these affiliates.    
 
These affiliates are not consolidated into the RHA financial statements.  
Alternately, Note 9 b) ii) provides supplementary information on the financial 
position, results of operations, and cash flows of the affiliates.   

 
iii) The Hospitals of Regina Foundation (the Foundation) is a non-controlled not-for-

profit entity that raises funds for programs and equipment for facilities under the 
Regina Qu’Appelle Health Region.  The Foundation is incorporated under the 
Non-Profit Corporations Act and is a registered charity under The Income Tax 
Act.   
 
The activities of the Foundation are not consolidated into the RHA financial 
statements.  Alternately, Note 9 b) iii) provides supplementary information on the 
financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of the Foundation.  
 

b) Fund Accounting 
 

The accounts of the RHA are maintained in accordance with the restricted fund method 
of accounting for contributions. For financial reporting purposes, accounts with similar 
characteristics have been combined into the following major funds: 
 
i) Operating Fund 

 
The operating fund reflects the primary operations of the RHA including 
revenues received for provision of health services from Saskatchewan Health - 
General Revenue Fund, and billings to patients, clients, the federal government 
and other agencies for patient and client services. Other revenue consists of 
donations, recoveries and ancillary revenue.  Expenses are for the delivery of 
health services. 
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ii) Capital Fund 
 

The capital fund is a restricted fund that reflects the equity of the RHA in capital 
assets after taking into consideration any associated long-term debt. The capital 
fund includes revenues received from Saskatchewan Health - General Revenue 
Fund designated for the construction of capital projects and/or the acquisition of 
capital assets. The capital fund also includes donations designated for capital 
purposes by the contributor. Expenses consist primarily of amortization of capital 
assets. 
 

iii) Community Trust Fund 
 

The community trust fund is a restricted fund that reflects community generated 
assets transferred to the RHA in accordance with the pre-amalgamation 
agreements signed with the amalgamating health corporations. The assets include 
cash and investments initially accumulated by the health corporations in the RHA 
from donations or municipal tax levies. These assets are accounted for separately 
and use of the assets is subject to restrictions set out in pre-amalgamation 
agreements between the RHA and the health corporations.   

 
c) Revenue 

 
Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the Operating Fund in the year in 
which they are received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably 
estimated and collection is reasonably assured.  
 
Restricted contributions related to general operations are deferred and recognized as 
revenue of the Operating Fund in the year in which the related expenses are incurred. All 
other restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate restricted fund 
in the year. 

 
d) Capital Assets 

 
Capital assets are recorded at cost.  Normal maintenance and repairs are expensed as 
incurred. Capital assets, with a life exceeding one year, are amortized on a straight-line 
basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 

 
Buildings -  2 1/2% to 6 2/3% 
Leasehold improvements -  2 1/2% to 20% 
Equipment -  5% to 30% 
 
Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair value at the date of contribution. 

 
e) Inventory 

 
Inventories consist of general stores, pharmacy, and linen. All inventories are valued at 
cost. Cost of general stores and linen inventory is determined on a weighted average 
basis. Pharmacy inventory cost is determined on the first in, first out basis. 
 

f) Investments 
 

Investments are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. 
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 g) Pension 
   

Employees of the RHA participate in several multi-employer defined benefit pension 
plans or a defined contribution plan.  The RHA follows defined contribution plan 
accounting for its participation in the plans.  Accordingly the RHA expenses all 
contributions it is required to make in the year.   
 

h) Measurement Uncertainty 
 

These financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with 
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.  In the preparation of financial 
statements, management makes various estimates and assumptions in determining the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and in the disclosure of 
commitments and contingencies.  Changes in estimates and assumptions will occur based 
on the passage of time and the occurrence of certain future events.  The changes will be 
reported in earnings in the period in which they became known.   
 

3. Capital Assets 
    
  2005  2004 
    Accumulated   Net Book     Accumulated    Net Book  
  Cost    Depreciation   Value    Cost   Depreciation    Value  
Land  $      4,203,602    $                  -    $   4,203,602     $    4,203,602     $                     -      $     4,203,602 
Buildings      352,545,514      126,328,510     226,217,004       352,522,614         117,600,014         234,922,600  
Land & Leasehold               
  Improvements          4,489,488          2,714,156         1,775,332           4,467,165             2,558,500             1,908,665  
Equipment      188,781,943      145,593,875       43,188,068       182,064,224         136,693,132           45,371,092  
Construction in Progress          1,679,332                         -          1,679,332           1,036,147                            -             1,036,147  
  $  551,699,879   $ 274,636,541   $ 277,063,338      $ 544,293,752     $   256,851,646     $  287,442,106  
 
4. Commitments 
  

a) Capital Asset Acquisitions 
 
At March 31, 2005, commitments for acquisitions of capital assets were $15,341,976 (2004 - 
$2,525,479). 
 

b) Operating Leases 
 

Minimum annual rentals under operating leases on property and equipment over the next five 
years are as follows: 

   
2005-2006 1,429,188 
2006-2007 1,346,706
2007-2008 1,139,810
2008-2009 494,146 
2009-2010 479,209 
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5. Mortgages and Loans Payable 
 

 Interest  S.H.C.   
 Rate Repayment Terms Subsidy 2005 2004 

Whitewood Community Health Centre      
CMHC  Due December 2013 5.140% $99,851 principal & interest 31,635   $    1,030,640  $   1,076,901
Eastern Saskatchewan Pioneer Lodge    
CMHC   Due October 2017 5.875% $10,814 principal & interest  96,394 101,452
CMHC   Due October 2024 8.000% $10,131 principal & interest  101,028 103,118
Grenfell & District Pioneer Home  $0 principal & interest  0 1,313

Golden Prairie Home    
CMHC   Due December 2013 5.140% $61,132 principal & interest 19,755  663,624 690,335
CMHC   Due May 2024 7.625% $18,687 principal & interest  189,623 193,900
Broadview & District Centennial Lodge    
CMHC   Due August 2006 5.900% $147,674 principal & interest 43,319  411,720 531,618
Silver Heights Special Care Home    
CMHC   Due March 2013 5.380% $49,785 principal & interest 60,000  656,071 670,601
Parkland Lodge    
CMHC   Due April 2015 8.000% $17,221 principal & interest  119,628 127,111 
Echo Lodge    
CMHC   Due September 2012 5.520% $59,166 principal & interest 21,089  664,085 686,419 
CMHC   Due January 2023 7.500% $3,243 principal & interest  32,095 32,933 
CMHC   Due January 2018 5.875% $10,688 principal & interest  96,563 101,490 
Medical Office Building    
Bank of Montreal - demand loan 3.875% $373,287 principal & interest  3,115,422 3,370,881 
Local Governments    
Pacific & Western - Due September 2008 6.560% $69,364 to $78,629 principal & interest 244,488 326,115 
Fort Qu'Appelle Regional Office    
Pacific & Western - Due November 2009 6.627% $75,070 principal & interest  299,847 353,353 

    $    7,721,228 $    8,367,540
  Less: Current portion            636,733 636,460
    $    7,084,495 $    7,731,080

 

For each of the mortgages, the RHA has pledged the related buildings of the special care homes as 
security.  Security for the loans was given in the form of promissory notes, general security 
agreements, assignments of fire insurance and board resolutions.   

 

The RHA assumed responsibility for a loan agreement with Pacific and Western Trust, which was 
made on behalf of local governments that committed funds for the construction of the Balcarres 
Integrated Care Centre.  The local governments provided signed agreements for the annual payment of 
their portion of the loan.  The balance owing from local governments is $256,789 (2004 - $324,846). 

 
The Medical Office Building demand loan was to finance the construction of the Medical Office 
Building. This project is considered to be self-financing over a 20-year period and the loan is secured 
through assignment of rent receipts.  Interest is at bank prime less .375%. There is a remaining 
fourteen-year amortization on this loan. 
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Principal repayments required in each of the next five years are estimated as follows: 
 

2005-2006  636,733 
2006-2007  669,528 
2007-2008 703,977 
2008-2009 607,245 
2009-2010 522,973 
2010 and subsequent             4,580,771 

 
6. Deferred Revenue 
   

Restricted funding related to general operations from Saskatchewan Health - General Revenue 
Fund is recorded as revenue as the related costs are incurred.  

 
  Add Amount Received 

from Health  
 Balance 

Beginning of 
Year  

 Less Amount 
Recognized from 

Health  

 Less Amount 
Recognized from 

Other Sources  

 Add Amount 
Received from Other 

Sources  

Balance End of 
Year 

Aboriginal Awareness  $         80,830  $       32,810  $               144,191  $                        -   $                       -   $            192,211 
Aboriginal Awareness Representative Workforce                    -                3,000                24,000                            -                            -           21,000 
Cognitive Disabilities Enhancement                     -                    866                   100,000                             -                             -             99,134 
Cognitive Disabilities Medical Diagnostic Services                   -                        -                         80,000                            -                              -               80,000 
Cognitive Disability Consultant                       -                      -                      35,000                      -                             -             35,000 
Diabetes Foot Program               51,733               51,733                            -                       -                            -  -  
Diabetes Plan                      -                10,190               60,000                      -                             -        49,810 
Frontline Professional Development                      -                       -                  122,920                      -                       -           122,920 
Health Promotion Strategy                      -                   2,570                    22,000                      -                       -             19,430 
Healthline             264,579           3,097,260              3,030,000                      -                       -           197,319 
Healthline Promotion                      -                       -                      3,500                      -                       -              3,500 
High Risk Youth            190,000             190,000                           -                       -                       -                    -  
HIPA Pressures                      -                       -                   120,750                      -                       -            120,750 
IRCS/YCJA            166,671             227,895                 120,000                      -                       -             58,776 
Pay Equity                      -                       -                  136,779                      -                       -           136,779 
MDS Home Care                      -                   2,937                150,000                      -                       -          147,063 
Medical Remuneration Issues                      -                       -                  500,000                      -                       -            500,000 
Nursing Standards Council             111,359                20,340                          -                       -                       -             91,019 
Phase 1 Transfusion Surveillance          45,000                45,000                            -                       -                       -                    -  
Podiatry Diabetes              22,742                 22,742                            -                       -                       -                  -  
Preceptorship Training                      -                    2,965                  125,000                      -                       -           122,035 
Primary Health Care Initiatives              87,796              189,955                  145,000                      -                       -             42,841 
Primary Health Services                      -                       -                     15,000                      -                       -             15,000 
Professional & Clinical Development                    -                       -                   143,180                      -                       -            143,180 
Professional Leadership Training                  -                18,000                   36,000                      -                       -            18,000 
Provincial Diabetes Plan 02/03            60,000               60,000                            -                       -                       -                    -  
Provincial Diabetes Plan 03/04            60,000                60,000                            -                       -                       -                   -  
Quality Health Workplace Initiatives                      -                      -                  537,080                      -                       -          537,080 
Research Project Nurses' Turnover               50,000                       -                             -                       -                       -           50,000 
SIMS, IPHIS & Environmental Health Systems                      -                       -                     10,000                      -                       -             10,000 
Surgical Access Manager                     -                        -                99,025                      -                       -         99,025 
Surgical Wait List Registry                       -                85,000                    85,000                      -                       -                     -  
Primary Health Care Position              78,600                88,359                    80,500                      -                       -             70,741 
Tobacco Enforcement                 8,500                  8,500                      -                              -                       -                     -  
Acquired Brain Injury Program             205,087                      -                       -                    625,391                    420,304                    -  
Education Funds              57,446                      -                       -                      97,983                  180,984         140,447 
Kids First             466,132                      -                       -                  2,996,637                 2,775,591         245,086 
Research Grants           1,036,706                      -                       -                     391,593                  499,536      1,144,649 
Medical Earnings Pool             583,561                      -                       -                        36,681                     33,255          580,135 
Other            610,017                      -                       -                      270,509                    522,832         862,340 

  
Total  $     4,236,759  $       4,220,122  $          5,924,925  $             4,418,794  $            4,432,502  $         5,955,270 
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7. Net Change in Non-Cash Working Capital 
 

Operating Fund Restricted Funds 
   

 2005 2004 Capital 
Community 

Trust  
Total 
2005 

Total 
2004 

(Increase) Decrease in accounts receivable $   6,369,024 $(7,592,047) $     750,064  $    52,981   $    803,045 $   (199,747)
(Increase) Decrease in inventory         751,082 (1,147,325) - -  - -
(Increase) Decrease in prepaid expenses       (557,943) (2,101,170) - -  - -
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable      7,974,093  1,191,582 (7,362,179) (185,971)    (7,548,150) 9,670,534
Increase (Decrease) in salaries & vacation payable      (651,710) 3,294,780 - -  - -
Increase (Decrease) in deferred revenue      1,718,511 (2,054,616) - -  -          (8,813)
 $ 15,603,057 $(8,408,796) $ (6,612,115)  $(132,990)  $(6,745,105) $  9,461,974

  
8. Contingent Liability 
 

a) City of Regina 
 
A statement of claim dated January 17, 2003 was filed by the Administrative Board of the Regina 
Civic Employees’ Long-Term Disability Plan, the Administrative Board of the Regina Civic 
Employees’ Superannuation and Benefit Plan and the City of Regina as Plaintiffs against the 
Regina Qu’Appelle Regional Health Authority, Saskatchewan Association of Health 
Organizations, Health Sciences Association of Saskatchewan and Saskatchewan Union of Nurses 
as Defendants.  The dispute is in relation to the two respective pension and long-term disability 
plans. 
 
Currently the parties are in the Discovery Stage of the process. 
 
b) Joint Job Evaluation Reconsiderations 
 
The joint job evaluation/pay equity initiative for the service provider unions CUPE, SEIU, and 
SGEU allowed for an appeal process.  As a result, employers have filed reconsideration appeals 
that are currently under review.  A financial obligation to pay reconsideration costs occurs once 
the Steering Committee reviews the recommendations from the Reconsideration Committee and 
reaches a consensus decision.  At this time the Steering Committee has not yet reached any final 
decisions regarding the reconsiderations. 
 
As the final results of the reconsideration process are currently unknown, the cost of the 
reconsiderations cannot be reasonably determined 
 

9. Related Parties 
 

a) Related Party Transactions 
 
These financial statements include transactions with related parties.  The RHA is related to all 
Saskatchewan Crown Agencies such as departments, corporations, boards and commissions under 
the common control of the Government of Saskatchewan.  The RHA is also related to non-Crown 
enterprises that the Government jointly controls or significantly influences.  In addition, the RHA 
is related to other non-Government organizations by virtue of its economic interest in these 
organizations.   

 
Transactions with these related parties are in the normal course of operations. Amounts due to or 
from and the recorded amounts of transactions resulting from these transactions are included in 
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the financial statements and the table below. They are recorded at standard rates charged by those 
organizations and are settled on normal trade terms. 
 

2005  2004 
Accounts Receivable  
Health Quality Council $      124,297  $                  -
Saskatchewan Cancer Foundation 891,894   3,356,798 
Workers' Compensation Board 305,183   310,281 

 
Accounts Payable  
Saskatchewan Association of Health Organizations $   1,054,474  $   2,014,957
SaskEnergy Incorporated 14,709  42,794 
Saskatchewan Power 368,938   276,228 
Saskatchewan Property Management Corporation 204,369   213,127 
Saskatchewan Telecommunications  170,534   140,136
Saskatchewan Healthcare Employees’ Pension Plan  1,743,793               -

 
Revenue  
Health Quality Council $      344,198  $                  -
Saskatchewan Cancer Foundation 3,162,021  2,794,559 
SGI Canada Insurance Services Ltd. 2,643,059   2,697,172 
Workers' Compensation Board 2,245,940   2,339,917 

 
Expense  
Saskatchewan Association of Health Organizations $ 11,261,370  $ 17,356,665 
Saskatchewan Healthcare Employees’ Pension Plan 12,192,528                   -
SaskEnergy Incorporated 389,878   378,568 
SGI Canada Insurance Services Ltd. 27,645  30,900 
Saskatchewan Power 3,786,958   3,764,836 
Saskatchewan Property Management Corporation 1,899,658   1,881,492 
Saskatchewan Telecommunications  1,922,162   2,080,887
SaskTel Mobility 27,998  31,029 
Workers' Compensation Board 7,308,883   5,919,099 

 
In addition, the RHA pays Provincial Sales Tax to the Saskatchewan Department of Finance on 
all its taxable purchases.  Taxes are recorded as part of the cost of those purchases. 
 
b) Health Care Organizations 
 

i) Community Based Organizations and Third Parties 
  

The RHA has also entered into agreements with CBOs and Third Parties to provide 
health services. 
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These organizations receive operating funding from the RHA in accordance with budget 
amounts approved annually.  During the year, the RHA provided the following amounts 
to CBOs and Third Parties: 
               

2005 2004 
615672 Sask Ltd. (Touchwood EMS)  $        309,100 $        322,087 
Autism Resource Centre       314,860        309,995 
Backlin’s Ambulance Service Ltd.         401,173          433,940 
City of Regina Transit Department           20,000            20,000 
Cosmopolitan Activity Centre           28,030            28,030 
Cupar Lions Volunteer Ambulance         154,943          183,577 
Extendicare (Canada) Inc.    16,002,744     15,238,043 
Imperial & District Ambulance           83,609            84,306 
JT Ambulance Service Ltd.         262,662          287,983 
Living Sky Ambulance           17,064            17,064 
Lumsden & Craven Seniors' Program Inc.           22,500            22,500 
Mental Health Association / Regina Branch Inc. 351,609          348,029 
Milestone Assisted Living Advisory Board           25,250            25,250 
Mobile Crisis Services, Inc.           86,065            85,213 
Phoenix Residential Society          946,836          937,462 
Planned Parenthood Regina         122,898          122,898 
Prairie Ambulance Care (1998) Ltd.         216,364          226,960 
Rainbow Youth Centre         166,316          164,700 
Raymore Community Health & Social Centre           45,000            45,000 
Red Cross         123,000          120,000 
Regina Recovery Homes Inc.      1,491,464       1,575,781 
Salvation Army Waterston Centre         158,371          149,851 
Soo Line Ambulance           88,908            89,803 
University of Regina           62,336            62,336 
Valley Ambulance Care Ltd. 303,684          316,767 
Miscellaneous Grants 28,398            56,995 

$  21,833,184  $  21,274,570 

 
ii) Affiliates 
  

The Act makes the RHA responsible for the delivery of health services in its region 
including the health services provided by privately owned affiliates.  The Act requires 
affiliates to conduct their affairs and activities in a manner that is consistent with, and that 
reflects, the health goals and objectives established by the RHA.  The following 
presentation discloses the amount of funds granted to each affiliate: 

 
2005 2004 

All Nations’ Healing Hospital Inc. $   2,400,000 $    2,233,969 
Cupar & District Nursing Home Inc.    1,798,147    1,697,306 
Lumsden & District Heritage Home Inc.      1,516,166      1,400,943 
Pioneer Village Special Care Corporation    16,441,996    15,585,792 
The Qu'Appelle Diocesan Housing Company          829,778         796,354 
The Regina Lutheran Housing Corporation 3,420,435      3,244,772 
The Salvation Army William Booth Special Care Home 4,487,636      3,949,898 
Santa Maria Senior Citizens Home Inc. 5,792,700      5,546,134 

$ 36,686,858 $ 34,455,168 
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Saskatchewan Health requires additional reporting in the following financial summaries 
of the affiliate entities as at March 31, 2004 and 2003 and for the years then ended: 

   
  Total    Total  
 2004  2003 

Balance Sheet
Assets  $         10,576,356  $            9,648,627 
Net Capital Assets          22,647,090           22,639,421 
Total Assets $          33,223,446  $          32,288,048 

Total Liabilities            16,454,316             16,385,471 
Total Net Assets (Fund Balances)            16,769,130             15,902,577 

$         33,223,446  $         32,288,048 

Results of Operations
RHA Grant $         34,024,646  $         31,480,148 
Other Revenue           12,057,420            11,703,060 

Total Revenue          46,082,066           43,183,208 

Salary & Benefits 38,372,856           33,453,646
Other Expenses* 6,333,156              8,720,285

Total Expenses $         44,706,012  $         42,173,931 
Excess Revenue over Expenses $           1,376,054  $           1,009,277 

* Other Expenses includes amortization of $240,385 (2003 - $267,599) 
 

Cash Flows  
Cash from Operations $           1,470,072   $         1,190,093 
Cash used in Financing Activities             (1,068,187)            (1,960,603)
Cash used in Investing Activities* 108,273                    802,136 

Increase in Cash $              510,158   $              31,626 
 

*Cash used in Investing Activities includes capital purchases of $379,241 (2003 - $234,800) 

 

iii) Fund Raising Foundations 
 

The Hospitals of Regina Foundation Inc. is an independent non-profit corporation 
without share capital that has its own Board of Directors.  It provides donations to the 
RHA for capital equipment, education and research purposes.  Its accounts are not 
included in these financial statements.  As of December 31, 2004 it has net assets of 
$9,873,959 (2003 - $7,654,073).  During the year, the Foundation provided funding of 
approximately $2,718,631 (March 31, 2004 - $3,085,762) for programs and capital 
acquisitions reported in donations and ancillary income.  These amounts were used to 
fund capital assets, education and research projects at the Regina General Hospital, the 
Pasqua Hospital and the Wascana Rehabilitation Centre.   
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December 31,  December 31, 
2004  2003 

Balance Sheet
  

Total Assets $    11,937,148   $    8,534,153 

Total Liabilities         2,063,189           880,080 

Total Net Assets (Fund Balances)*      9,873,959      7,654,073

 $   11,937,148  $   8,534,153
   
* In accordance with donor-imposed restrictions $1,979,270 (2003 - $835,762) of the foundation's net 
assets must be used to purchase specialized equipment.   
 
 

  

Results of Operations   

Other Revenues    $    6,422,522      $    5,284,080

Total Revenues       6,422,522   5,284,080 

Total Expenses*       4,202,636         4,544,994 

Excess of revenue over expenses $    2,219,886  $       739,086 
   
* Total expenses include contributions of $2,772,193  (2003 - $3,288,997) to the RHA and 
amortization of $26,816  (2003 - $23,550) 

Cash Flows
   

  
Cash from operations $       2,238,888   $        603,889 

Cash used in financing and investing activities*         (34,437)             (708,879)

Increase (Decrease) in cash  $       2,204,451   $      (104,990)
  

* Investing activities include capital purchases of $39,500  (2003 - $23,857) 

 
10. Patient and Resident Trust Accounts 
 

The RHA administers funds held in trust for patients and residents using the RHA’s facilities. The 
funds are held in separate accounts for the patients or residents at each facility. The total cash 
held in trust as at March 31, 2005 was $57,681 (2004 - $78,193). These amounts are not reflected 
in the financial statements. 

• 

• 

 
11. Pension Plan 
 

Employees of the RHA participate in one of the following pension plans:   
Saskatchewan Healthcare Employees’ Pension Plan (SHEPP), which is jointly governed 
by a board of eight trustees.  Four of the trustees are appointed by the Saskatchewan 
Association of Health Organizations (SAHO) (a related party) and four of the trustees are 
appointed by Saskatchewan’s health care unions (CUPE, SUN, SEIU, SGEU, RWDSU, 
and HSAS).  SHEPP is a multi-employer defined benefit plan that came into effect 
December 31, 2002.  Prior to December 31, 2002 this plan was the SAHO Retirement 
Plan and was governed by the SAHO Board of Directors.   
Regina Civic Employees’ Superannuation and Benefit Plan (RCP), which is a defined 
benefit plan. The RCP is administered by a jointly trusteed board (equal employer and 
employee representatives).  
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• 

• 

 

 

13. Insurance 

 

Public Service Superannuation Plan (a related party), which is also a defined benefit plan. 
This plan is administered by a Cabinet appointed board of directors.  
Public Employees’ Pension Plan (a related party) which is a defined contribution plan. 
This plan is administered by a Cabinet appointed board of directors.   

 
The RHA’s financial obligation to the plans is limited to making required payments to match 
amounts contributed by employees for current services. The RHA follows defined contribution 
plan accounting for its participation in these plans. Accordingly, the RHA expenses all 
contributions it is required to make in the year.  
 
Pension expense for the year amounted to $20,185,222 (2004 - $15,068,179) which is included in 
benefits in Schedule 1. 

12. Budget 

The RHA Board approved the 2004-2005 budget plan on June 30, 2004.  

 
The RHA purchases liability insurance from Healthcare Insurance Reciprocal of Canada (the 
Reciprocal). Under the terms of the Subscribers’ Agreement, with respect to a policy period 
where revenues exceed expenses, any premium surplus may be refunded to the Reciprocal’s 
subscribers on a proportionate basis after the subscriber has been enrolled with the Reciprocal for 
more than four years. This is the RHA’s eighth year in the agreement with the Reciprocal. 
Similarly, if there is a deficiency of revenues, the Reciprocal may collect such premium 
deficiency from its Subscribers on a proportionate basis. The Reciprocal maintains a stabilization 
fund to cover future deficiencies. Also, the Reciprocal is insured for claims in excess of $1 
million. There is no premium surplus for the current year and there are no claims reported that are 
expected to exceed the policy limits. 

 
14. Workers’ Compensation Board   
 

On July 16, 2001 the Regina Qu’Appelle Regional Health Authority was served notice by 
Saskatchewan Workers’ Compensation Board of its intent to terminate, without cause, the joint 
operating agreement between the two parties.  In March 2005 funding was received from 
Saskatchewan Health to repay Workers’ Compensation Board the depreciated value of the portion 
of the facility funded by Saskatchewan Workers’ Compensation Board. 

 
15. Financial Instruments 

a) Significant terms and conditions 
 

There are no significant terms and conditions related to financial instruments classified as 
current assets or current liabilities that may affect the amount, timing and certainty of 
future cash flows. Significant terms and conditions for the other financial instruments are 
disclosed separately in these financial statements. 
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b) Credit Risk 

 
The RHA is exposed to credit risk from the potential non-payment of accounts 
receivable. The majority of the RHA's receivables are from Saskatchewan Health – 
General Revenue Fund, Saskatchewan Cancer Foundation, health insurance companies, 
the Federal Government or other Provinces.  Therefore, the credit risk is minimal. 
 

c) Fair value 
 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class 
of financial instrument: 

cash and short-term investments 

• For investments, the fair value of $21,670,432 (2004 - $7,781,627) is considered 
to approximate quoted market values. 

The RHA has an unsecured line of credit limit of $31,514,987 approved by the Minister 
of Health in 1999.  Interest on the outstanding balance is charged at bank prime less 
.75%.  Total interest paid on the line of credit was $339,690 (2004 - $642,254). 

 

 
• The carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximate fair value due 

to their immediate or short-term nature: 

accounts receivable 
accounts payable  
accrued salaries and vacation payable       

• The fair value of mortgages payable before the repayment required within one 
year is $3,929,667 (2004 - $4,510,968) and is determined using discounted cash 
flow analysis based on current incremental borrowing rates for similar borrowing 
arrangements. 

• For the bank overdraft and debt, fair value is considered to be their carrying 
amounts. 

 

a) Operating Line-of-Credit 

 

16. Interfund Transfers 
 

Each year the RHA transfers amounts between its funds for various purposes.  These include 
funding capital asset purchases, and reassigning fund balances to support certain activities.   

 2005 2004 
       
  Operating   

$              - 

 Capital  
 Community  

 Trust   Operating   Capital   
 Community  

 Trust  

Building renovations $                 - $              - $               - $                -  $                -
Capital asset purchases             - 210,265      (210,265)             -         280,282       (280,282)

Mortgage payments 

$       (85,720) 

SHC reserves     (85,720)  85,720                -    308,063  (308,063)                 -
            -            -                -             -            -                 -

Other             -            -                -             -            -                 -
 $    295,985  $   (210,265) $     308,063 $   (27,781)   $   (280,282)
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17. Comparative Information 
 

Certain 2003-04 balances have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation. 
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   Schedule 1
REGINA QU'APPELLE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES BY OBJECT 
For the year ended March 31 

      
 Budget     
 2005   2005   2004  

    (Note 17) 
Operating:      
Benefits  $           53,506,306 

  

Grants to ambulance services 
 

2,234,222 

 

4,879,805  

 
 

Other 8,150,435 

Rent/lease costs 

271,205,225  265,945,144 
Service contracts 850,748  959,692  

 

  $           52,688,828    $        47,967,819 
Board costs 144,770  148,877  137,337 
Diagnostic imaging supplies 1,647,229 1,372,991 1,366,711 
Drugs 10,941,335  10,763,649  9,208,699 
Food 4,596,890  4,428,654  4,404,836 

1,845,668  1,838,397  1,963,487 
Grants to third parties 56,581,152  56,681,645 53,766,251 
Housekeeping and laundry supplies  1,980,403  1,967,591 
Information technology contracts 2,709,584  2,686,274  2,438,927 
Insurance 1,311,298 1,277,318  1,045,550 
Interest 1,111,447  555,761  903,303 
Laboratory supplies 4,990,672  4,361,162 
Medical and surgical supplies 24,865,656  25,307,237  23,732,662 
Medical remuneration and benefits 41,219,105  40,323,576 38,242,557 
Office supplies and other office costs 1,968,676 1,771,278  1,793,514 

9,343,114  8,781,187  
Other referred out services 411,981  456,766  309,956 
Professional fees 10,441,182  10,055,932  11,213,147 
Prosthetics 10,126,855  11,324,582  9,054,440 
Purchased services 368,392  330,984  307,405 

4,926,201  4,796,090  4,450,639 
Repairs and maintenance 8,436,701  8,789,599  7,152,964 
Salaries 277,023,458  

689,046 
Travel 3,567,564  2,803,776  3,202,891 
Utilities 9,404,798  8,674,583 8,217,866 
  $         538,756,771   $         540,701,342    $      511,994,339 

      
Restricted      
Amortization  

 
    $        17,836,924 

  $           17,837,098    $        17,264,391 
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets                                  -                               - 
Other  566,334  572,533 

  $           18,403,432  
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 REGINA QU'APPELLE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY  
 SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS  

 For the year ending March 31, 2005  
     

    
    Effective 

   Amount Maturity Rate 
Restricted    

Cash and Short-Term    
 

 
6,136 

CIBC - Regina 
 

 

RBC Dominion Securities - Cash Account 

 

TD Canada Trust - Grenfell 
 

Chequing and Savings   
 Bank of Montreal - Regina 16,618,053  
 Broadview Credit Union   
 415,858   

CIBC Wood Gundy Cash Account 499,649   
 Cornerstone Credit Union - Lestock 3,173  
 Cornerstone Credit Union - Raymore 18,046   
 Moosomin Credit Union 7,338   
 29   
 Royal Bank - Balcarres 32,396   
 Royal Bank - Indian Head 12,702  
 Royal Bank - Moosomin 12,654   
 Royal Bank - Regina 7,873   
 18,998   

  $              17,652,905   
     

Investments   

 55,792 
 

2.56% 

635,100 

12/01/05 
 2.48% 

143,774 

14  
47,760 

 

Alberta Municipal Finance 06/01/05 4.60% 
Government of Canada 136,385 06/01/05 5.22% 

 Province of Ontario 18,936 06/01/05 
 Province of Ontario 35,192 06/02/05 2.56% 

 Saskatchewan Savings Bonds 07/15/05 5.75% 
 Farm Credit Corporation 170,000 08/15/05 4.25% 

 Bank of Montreal GIC 33,800 09/29/05 2.00% 
 Province of Ontario 297,200 5.39% 

Province of Ontario 81,637 12/02/05 
 Province of Ontario 12/02/05 5.40% 
 Government of Canada Treasury Bill 208,964 02/23/06 2.55% 

 Province of Nova Scotia 331,000 03/15/06 5.50% 
 Renaissance Canadian T-Bill Fund  
 Renaissance Canadian Money Market Fund   

   $                2,195,554   
     

Long-Term Investments    
 Alberta Treasury Branches 413,868 06/09/06 3.25% 
 Farm Credit Canada 3.00% 

16,871 
Government of Canada 

12/02/06 
10,700 07/15/07 

 07/15/08 
 

81,024 11/15/07 
 Farm Credit Corp 04/15/07 3.50% 
 80,723 12/01/06 3.25% 
 Government of Canada 133,657 09/01/07 4.50% 
 Government of Canada 95,906 09/01/07 4.50% 
 Province of Ontario 11,699 2.66% 
 Saskatchewan Savings Bonds 3.25% 

Saskatchewan Savings Bonds 380,200 3.00% 
  $                1,224,648   
 Total Restricted Investments  $              21,073,107   
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Unrestricted    
Cash and Short-Term    
 Cash on Hand - Deposit  

Petty Cash  
 $                   111,435  

61,322  
 50,113  
   
     
Long-Term Investments    
 Saskatchewan Savings Bonds Series 10 07/15/06 
 
 02/15/08 4.50% 

Unamortized bond premium 

 $                   328,987  

101,500 4.25% 
Saskatchewan Savings Bonds Series 11 39,100 07/15/07 3.25% 
Farm Credit Corporation 187,000 

 1,387   

   

 Total Unrestricted Investments 440,422   
     

 Total Investments  $              21,513,529   

     

Cash & short-term investments  $              19,959,894   

Investments 1,553,635   

   $              21,513,529   
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          Schedule 3 

REGINA QU'APPELLE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF EXTERNALLY RESTRICTED FUNDS 

For the year ended March 31, 2005 
               
              

             
            

   Investment    Transfer to   Transfer to   Balance 

  Beginning  & Other      Investment in  External  End 

  of Year  Revenue   Expenses  Capital Asset   of Year 

             

Capital Fund              

Echo Lodge  36,110  

Saskatchewan Health Construction  

16,645   -  

 

Balcarres Integrated Care Centre   $      50,128    $       1,413    $    13,165    $      3,232    $          13,703    -    $       47,771  

 704   2,374   1,115   1,840    -   36,233  

Home Care   4,075   82    -    -    -    -   4,157  

 263,156    -    -   -   50,734    -   212,422  

Silver Heights  9,219   16,249   7,695      -   16,518  

St. Joseph's Integrated Care Centre  4,728   25   6,547    -   12,906    -   (1,606) 

  367,416  18,473  29,781  20,992  79,183   -   315,495 

               

Community Trust Fund               

 
15,591   

19,333  13,531  

 -   

50,653   -  290  

 -  519,658  

  6,415  

 37,264  

 10,979  

4,511  

Moosomin Hospital 2,172,391  

 

 

Balcarres Integrated Care Centre 87,789  1,453  12,300  2,500   -   -   99,042  

Broadview & District Centennial Lodge  303,233    13,355    -   8,750    -  323,429  

Broadview Hospital  453,404    7,310   -     -   466,516  

District Office  1,280     -   -    -    -   1,280  

Eastern Saskatchewan Pioneer Lodge     3,251    -    -   47,692  

Golden Prairie Home  457,505   20,365   5,262   7,803   41,250    -   434,079  

Grenfell Area  557,670   10,902   2,040   400   50,554    

Home Care   6,579    -  593   757   -  -   

Indian Head Hospital  47,533   3,971  26,729   1,224     -   39,745  

Lakeside Home  15,055   -   2,716   2,601   4,191    -   

Montmartre Health Centre  99,180    1,339   414   -   -   104,616  

 2,443,834   11,916   3,778   2,100   28,197    256,840  

St. Joseph's Integrated Care Centre  207,884   10,984    -   14,636    -   -   204,232  

Whitewood Community Health Centre  97,613   1,152   18,011   13,176   5,431    -   98,169  

Wolseley Memorial Hospital  335,328   15,720   3,970    -   21,097  -   333,921  

  5,164,540   115,898   97,693   48,862   210,265  2,172,391   2,946,613  

               

               

Total Externally Restricted Funds   $ 5,531,956    $   134,371    $  127,474    $    69,854    $        289,448    $2,172,391    $  3,262,108  
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           Schedule 4 

REGINA QU'APPELLE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF INTERNALLY RESTRICTED FUND BALANCES 

For the year ended March 31, 2005 
            
            
 Balance  Investment  Annual      Balance 
 Beginning  Income  SHC    Investment  End 
 of Year  Allocation  Allocation  Expense  in Capital  of Year 
            
Balcarres Integrated Care Centre  $      108,000   $                 -   $     5,527   $          -   $       5,527   $       108,000 
Broadview & District Centennial Lodge 15,199   -  9,405   -    -  24,604 
Eastern Saskatchewan Pioneer Lodge 20,404   -  15,400   -   9,571  26,233 
Echo Lodge 47,168   -  32,830   -   3,274  76,724 
Golden Prairie Home 115,790   -   -   -    -  115,790 
Grenfell Pioneer Home 86,167   -  7,108   -  

  

 3,275  90,000 
Silver Heights 67,094   -  7,750   -   14,099  60,745 
Whitewood Community Health Centre (7,470)   -  7,700   -   4,962  (4,732) 

 $     452,352   $                -   $   85,720   $          -  $     40,708   $       497,364 

            
        

   
    

   
 

    
            
The RHA is required to maintain certain replacement reserves as a condition of receiving subsidy assistance  
from Saskatchewan Housing Corporation.      
        
The above schedule shows the changes in these reserve balances during the year.      
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            Schedule 5 
REGINA QU'APPELLE REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULES OF 
For the year ended March 31, 2005 

BOARD REMUNERATION, BENEFITS, AND ALLOWANCES 
           

 
 

  2005  2004 
  Retainer &    Other     Retainer &  Benefits &   

Board Members   Per Diems  Benefits1

 

 Expenses  Total   Per Diems  
Other 

Expenses  Total 
Chairperson               
Knuttila, M.  - Retainer   $      9,960    $        320    

      
Bergman, A. 6,538     
Boutilier, L.  1,912 

 
8,888 

  
2,823  5,144  

 
  

 
 2,693 8,244 

     

  

 $             -    $     10,280    $      9,960    $         320   $     10,280 
Knuttila, M.  - Meetings  13,617  4,467  3,863  21,947   18,825  4,116  22,941 

                
Board Members          

  1,975   2,594 11,107  5,081  1,508 6,589 
 8,150    4,301  14,363   7,194  1,806  9,000 

Connolley, P. 7,238   4,330   5,143  16,711   11,150  5,527  16,677 
Elford, L.  9,887   1,248   2,017  13,152    2,264  11,152 
Everett, M.  6,462   4,332   8,559  19,353   12,331  8,235  20,566 
Fisher, T. 4,450  534   938  5,922   5,594  840  6,434 
Leier, B.  11,050    1,352  15,225   935  6,079 
Poitras, B.  3,800   1,417   1,496  6,713  4,913  2,165  7,078 
Semenchuck, G.  1,850   66   55  1,971  1,825 196  2,021 
Taylor, A.  4,250   219  660  5,129   4,200  1,028  5,228 
Ward, C. 5,425   2,075    10,193    3,353  11,597 
           

   $    92,677    $   25,718   $    33,671   $  152,066    $  103,349    $    32,293  $   135,642 
(1) Benefits include employer CPP and all travel time 
 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT SALARIES, BENEFITS, ALLOWANCES AND SEVERANCE 
 2005 2004 

          Severance           

  Number     Benefits &      
 

Number      
 

Number    
Salary, 
Benefit      

Staff 
 of 

FTE's   Salary1  Allowances2
& 

Allowances  

  

  Subtotal   
 of 

FTE's   
 

Amount    Total  
 of 

FTE's   Severance  Total 

President & CEO 1.00    $  274,823   $       24,898    $299,721    -    $         -  $299,721  1.00  $    285,633   $             -  $   285,633 

          

Senior Positions

           

        

Vice President, Human 
Resources3   -   

 

23,540    1.00 

 -  

    

  129,234 
     

  $     184,069  
 

$1,789,439  

            
Regional Medical 
Health Officer 1.00   189,759   15,483   205,242    -    -   205,242  1.00  181,816    -   181,816 
Senior Vice President, 
Health Services 1.00   174,713   21,323   196,036    -    -   196,036  1.00  189,126    -   189,126 
Senior Vice President, 
Medical Services 0.50   144,608   13,736   158,344    -    -   158,344  0.50  161,310    -   161,310 
Vice President, 
Corporate Services 1.00   139,740   18,548   

   
158,288    -    -   158,288  1.00  150,395    -   150,395 

1.00   65,244  12,144   
   

77,388     -   77,388  1.00  113,365    -  113,365 
Vice President, Medical 
Services 0.50  105,088   9,139   

   
114,227    -    -   114,227  0.50  116,537    -   116,537 

Vice President, 
Operations Support 1.00   137,745    

   
161,285    -   -  161,285   149,364    -   149,364 

Vice President, Primary 
Health Care 1.00   124,550   15,086   

   
139,636     -   139,636  1.00  129,234    -   129,234 

Vice President, 
Restorative & 
Continuing Care 1.00  124,550   15,086   139,636    -    -   139,636  1.00 129,235   -  129,235 
Vice President, 
Specialty Care 1.00   124,550   15,086  139,636    -    -   139,636  1.00  129,234   -   

                

10.00   $1,605,370    $1,789,439    -    $         -  10.00   $1,735,249    $             -    
 

$1,735,249  
(1) Includes regular base pay, overtime, lumpsum payments, honoraria and any other direct cash remuneration including sick leave and vacation 
(2) Benefits and allowances include employer’s share of statutory and non-statutory benefits, including contributions and premiums in respect of Canada Pension Plan, Employment Insurance, Workers Compensation Board, pension, 

group life insurance, disability income plan, extended health care plan, core and extended dental plan and employee’s taxable allowances. 
(3) The position was occupied for a portion of the year. 
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Appendix A – Performance Management Summary 
 

Indicator RQHR Provincial 
Comparison 

Range 

Organizational Effectiveness Indicators 
2.1.1.1. CCHSA current accreditation status for RHAs n/a n/a n/a 

2.1.1.2. Number of client contacts with the Regional 
Quality of Care Coordinator to raise a concern 
2003-04 

888 

 

n/a n/a 

 Number of client contacts with the Regional 
Quality of Care Coordinator to raise a concern 
Updated figures for 2004-05 

1000 n/a n/a 

2.1.1.3. Percentage of concerns raised with a Quality 
of Care Coordinator concluded within 30 days 
2003-04 

90% 

 

87% 25% - 90% 

 Percentage of concerns raised with a Quality 
of Care Coordinator concluded within 30 days 
Updated figures for 2004-2005 

91% n/a n/a 

Number of sick leave hours per full time 
equivalent (FTE) PROVIDER UNIONS 
(CUPE; SEIU; SGEU) 2004-05 

93.64 74.09 – 107.86 94.84 

Number of sick leave hours per full time 
equivalent (FTE) HSAS 2004-05 

65.88 63.34 52.54 – 120.03 

Number of sick leave hours per full time 
equivalent (FTE) OOS/OTHER* 2004-05 
* Category captures all non-unionized employees 
on the SAHO Payroll system, not just management 
personnel 

45.11 47.69 38.86 – 56.87 

2.1.1.8. 

70.00 – 98.43 Number of sick leave hours per full time 
equivalent (FTE) SUN 2004-05 

97.43 93.07 

Number of wage driven premium hours 
(overtime and other premiums) per full time 
equivalent (FTE) PROVIDER UNIONS 
(CUPE; SEIU; SGEU) 2004-05 

34.73 26.65 11.30 – 61.97 

Number of wage driven premium hours 
(overtime and other premiums) per full time 
equivalent (FTE) HSAS 2004-05 

32.94 22.38 2.89 – 48.65  

Number of wage driven premium hours 
(overtime and other premiums) per full time 
equivalent (FTE) OOS/OTHER* 2004-05 
* Category captures all non-unionized employees 
on the SAHO Payroll system, not just management 
personnel 

1.6 2.43 0.00 – 6.45 

2.1.1.9. 

Number of overtime hours per full time 
equivalent (FTE) SUN 2004-05 

95.58 63.99 19.92 – 314.54 
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Indicator RQHR Provincial 
Comparison 

Range 

Health system full time equivalents (FTEs) 
PROVIDER UNIONS (CUPE; SEIU; SGEU) 
2004-05 

3,740.39 n/a n/a 

Health system full time equivalents (FTEs) 
HSAS 2004-05 

565.15 n/a n/a 

Health system full time equivalents (FTEs) 
OOS/OTHER* 2004-05 
* Category captures all non-unionized employees 
on the SAHO Payroll system, not just management 
personnel 

471.85 n/a n/a 

2.1.1.10. 

Health system full time equivalents (FTEs) 
SUN 2004-05 

1,641.98 n/a n/a 

2.1.1.11. Number of lost-time WCB claims per 100 full 
time equivalents (FTEs) 2004-05 

7.39 6.52 4.32 – 9.67 

2.1.1.12. Number of lost-time WCB days per 100 full 
time equivalents (FTEs) 2004-05 

404.53 345.86 152.43 – 492.92 

Worked hours as a percentage of paid hours 
PROVIDER UNIONS (CUPE; SEIU; SGEU) 
2004-05 

80.3% 79.8% 78.5% - 81.5% 

Worked hours as a percentage of paid hours 
HSAS 2004-05 

81.4% 82.0% 79.7% - 83.5% 

Worked hours as a percentage of paid hours 
OOS/OTHER* 2004-05 
* Category captures all non-unionized employees 
on the SAHO Payroll system, not just management 
personnel 

83.0% 81.1% 69.5% - 83.7% 

2.1.1.17. 

Worked hours as a percentage of paid hours 
SUN 2004-05 

77.4% 79.1% 77.3% - 85.4% 

2.1.1.18.a Working capital ratio 2004-05i 0.48 n/a n/a 

2.1.1.18.b Number of days able to operate with working 
capital 2004-05 1

0 days n/a n/a 

2.1.1.19. Surplus/deficit as a percentage of actual 
expenditure 2004-05 1

0.26% n/a n/a 

Budget versus actual expenditures ACUTE 
CARE funding pool 2004-05 1

.987 n/a n/a 

Budget versus actual expenditures 
SUPPORTIVE CARE funding pool 2004-05 1

n/a .989 n/a 

Budget versus actual expenditures 
COMMUNITY BASED CARE funding pool 
2004-05 1

1.038 n/a n/a 

2.1.1.21. 

Budget versus actual expenditures 
PROGRAM SUPPORT funding pool 2004-
051

1.027 n/a n/a 
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Indicator RQHR Provincial 
Comparison 

Range 

Program-Specific Indicators 
Province Wide Services 

2.2.1.2. Number of exams for specialized medical 
imaging services: magnetic resonance 
imaging (MRI) scans 2004-05 

4,957 n/a n/a 

2.2.1.3. Number of exams for specialized medical 
imaging services: computed tomography (CT) 
scans 2004-05 

43,685 n/a n/a 

2.2.1.4. Average wait time for admission to 
Saskatchewan Hospital North Battleford 
(SHNB) 2004 

69 days 59 days 41 – 76 days 

2.2.1.6. Alcohol and drug inpatient treatment 
completion rateii per 100 admissions – Calder 
Centre Child & Youth 2003-04 

61.7% 

 

61.6% 

 

44.4 - 91.7% 

 

2.2.1.6. Alcohol and drug inpatient treatment 
completion rateiii per 100 admissions – Calder 
Centre Adults 2003-04 

50.0- 95.5% 75.9% 70.3% 

Acute Care Services 

2.2.2.3.a Number of surgical cases 2004-05 19,401 n/a n/a 

2.2.2.3.b Percentage of surgical cases performed as day 
surgery 2004-05 

48.0% 53% 48% - 66% 

2.2.2.4. Percentage of surgical cases completed within 
6 months, 12 months, and 18 months 2004-05 

74%;85%; 95% 81%; 91%; 95% 74-100%; 85-
100%; 93-100% 

Institutional Supportive Care Services 

2.2.4.5. Prevalence of pressure sores: percentage of 
institutional supportive care residents with 
pressure sores Q2 2004-05 (Quarterly Report 
– October 2004) 

16.2% 

 

 

21.8% 12.7% – 29.1% 

 Prevalence of pressure sores: percentage of 
institutional supportive care residents with 
pressure sores  

Updated figure for fiscal year 
2004-05 
Prevalence of grade 3 & 4 pressure sores 
2004-05 

 
 
 
 
17.5% 
 
2.6% 

 

 

n/a 

 

 

n/a 

Population Health Services 

2.2.6.1. Percentage of eligible population receiving 
immunization at second birthday (vaccine 
coverage rate) DIPHTHERIA 2004* 
* NOTE: SIMS does not capture on-reserve 
immunizations 

69.5% 73.3% 57.3% - 86.3% 
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Indicator RQHR Provincial 
Comparison 

Range 

Percentage of eligible population receiving 
immunization at second birthday (vaccine 
coverage rate) MEASLES 2003* 
* NOTE: SIMS does not capture on-reserve 
immunizations 

67.5% 57.3% - 85.6% 71.7% 

Genital chlamydia rate per 100,000 population 
MALES 2003 

253.3 268.1 27.4 – 3,259.0 2.2.6.6. 

Genital chlamydia rate per 100,000 population 
FEMALES 2003 

457.1 473.4 53.8 – 5,784.4 

2.2.6.7. Influenza immunization rate per 100 
population (age 65 years and over) 2003-04 

70.5% 65.8% 56.8% – 72.8% 

Population health promotion plan approved by 
RHA boards and submitted as part of health 
region operational plans (fall 2004) [yes/no 
indicator] 

Yes n/a n/a 2.2.6.8. 

Population health promotion plan progress 
report submitted March 31, 2005 [yes/no 
indicator] 

Yes n/a n/a 

Community Care Services 

2.2.7.2. Alcohol and drug outpatient treatment 
completion rate3 per 100 admissions 2003-04 

71.1% 58.4% 43.7-72.6% 

Primary Health Services 
2.2.9.1. Percentage of the population served by 

primary health care teams March 2005 
13.94% 23.89% 0.0% – 100.0% 

2.2.9.3. Total number of new primary health care 
teams in the current fiscal year 2004/2005 

 n/a n/a 

2.2.9.4. Regional Operational / Budget Plan includes 
an updated Primary Health Care Plan that 
identifies the location of primary health care 
teams 2004-05 [yes/no indicator] 

Yes n/a n/a 

2.2.9.5. Regional Operational / Budget Plan includes 
an updated Diabetes Management Plan 2004-
05 [yes/no indicator] 

n/a Yes n/a 

2.2.9.6. Regional Operational / Budget Plan outlines 
potential financial requirements 2004-05 
[yes/no indicator] 

Yes n/a n/a 

2.2.9.7. Regional Health Authorities participated in 3-
year and 5-year evaluations of demonstration 
sites, as required 2004-05 [yes/no indicator] 

Yes n/a n/a 
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Indicator RQHR Provincial 
Comparison 

Range 

Emergency Response Services 

2.2.10.1. Percentage of ambulance calls responded to 
where at least one of the emergency medical 
service providers has at least basic-EMT level 
training 2003-04 

99.92% 98.76% 70.17– 100.0% 

Mental Health and Addiction Services 

2.2.11.2. Mental health inpatient readmission rate per 
100 mental health inpatient separations 2003-
04 

18.4% 20.2% 17.9% – 26.3% 

2.2.11.3. Alcohol and drug inpatient treatment 
completion rate3 per 100 admissions 2003-04 

67.5% 68.2% 62.3% – 79.4% 

Program Support Services 

2.2.13.1. Administrative expenditures in program 
support funding pool as a percentage of 
overall base operating funds 2004-05 1

4.8% n/a n/a 

Health Status and Outcome Indicators 
3.1.1.1. Infant mortality rate per 1,000 live births 

1998-2002 
7.06 6.24 1.70 – 15.66 

3.1.1.2.a Low birth weight rate per 100 live births 
1998-2002 

5.63 5.26 4.34 – 6.19 

3.1.1.2.b High birth weight rate per 100 live births 
1998-2002 

15.0 15.7 13.1 – 26.7 

Disability-free life expectancy (at birth) 
MALES 1996 

66.4 66.6 61.8 – 69.2 3.1.1.4.a 

Disability-free life expectancy (at birth) 
FEMALES 1996 

70.3 70.0 63.2 – 72.5 

Disability-free life expectancy (at age 65 
years) MALES 1996 

11.1 11.2 8.7 – 12.1 3.1.1.4.b 

8.4 – 13.2 Disability-free life expectancy (at age 65 
years) FEMALES 1996 

13.0 12.7 

Life expectancy (at birth) MALES 2001 76.4 76.2 72.1 – 78.2 3.1.1.5.a 

Life expectancy (at birth) FEMALES 2001 81.9 81.8 76.1 – 82.8 

Life expectancy (at age 65 years) MALES 
2001 

17.1 16.9 15.6 – 18.0 3.1.1.5.b 

Life expectancy (at age 65 years) FEMALES 
2001 

21.0 20.9 17.2 – 21.8 

3.1.1.6. Self-rated health status: percentage of 
population (age 12 years and over) who report 
their health as very good or excellent 2003 

61.7% 59.5% 47.6% – 63.7% 
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Indicator RQHR Provincial 
Comparison 

Range 

Percentage of population (age 12 years and 
over) who are current, daily or occasional 
smokers MALES 2003 

26.2% 24.6% 20.8% – 40.7% 3.1.1.7. 

Percentage of population (age 12 years and 
over) who are current, daily or occasional 
smokers FEMALES 2003 

23.6% 23.1% 11.6% – 42.0% 

3.1.1.8.a Percentage of population (age 18 to 64 years) 
who are overweight (BMI 25.0-29.9) 2003 

38.2% 35.8% 31.7%- 41.8% 

3.1.1.8.b Percentage of population (age 18 to 64 years) 
who are obese (BMI 30.0+) 2003 

16.4% 20.5% 16.4%-27.2% 

3.1.1.10.a Percentage of population (age 12 years and 
over) who report physical activity 
participation levels of active / moderately 
active 2003 

52.8% 49.8% 41.7% – 56.1% 

3.1.1.10.b Percentage of population (age 12 years and 
over) who report physical activity 
participation levels of inactive 2003 

44.7% 47.8% 41.0% – 56.4% 

3.1.1.12. 38.9 n/a 29.5 – 72.5 Age-adjusted diabetes prevalence rate per 
1,000 population 2001-02 

Injury hospitalization rate per 1,000 
population (age 0 to 19 years) MALES 2002-
03 

11.2 9.3 6.7 – 17.6 3.1.1.13. 

6.5 Injury hospitalization rate per 1,000 
population (age 0 to 19 years) FEMALES 
2002-03 

7.5 4.6 – 12.0 

Hospitalization rate due to falls per 1,000 
population (age 65 years and over) MALES 
2002-03 

14.8 13.4 3.6 – 20.2 3.1.1.14. 

Hospitalization rate due to falls per 1,000 
population (age 65 years and over) 
FEMALES 2002-03 

27.0 25.1 0.0 – 35.0 

 
----------------------------------------------------------------- 

i  Financial data for indicators 2.1.1.18 – 2.1.1.21 & 2.2.13.1 are preliminary. 
iiThese numbers reflect clients who received individual assessment and treatment and do not include clients 
who received group therapies. The RQHR Addictions Services provides both individual and/or group 
treatment to their clients. 
iii These numbers reflect clients who received individual assessment and treatment and do not include 
clients who received group therapies. The RQHR Addictions Services provides both individual and/or 
group treatment to their clients. 
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